
Vestavia Hills  

City Council Agenda 

June 12, 2017 

6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order  

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – David Harwell, Vestavia Hills Resident and Member of Vestavia Hills 

United Methodist Church 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance 

5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 

6. City Manager’s Report 

7. Councilors’ Reports 

a. Approval of Minutes – May 15, 2017 (Regular Work Session) and May 22, 2017 

(Regular Meeting) 

Old Business  

8. Resolution Number 4950 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Allocate 

Funding Within The General Fund Budget For Fiscal Year 2016-2017 In Order To 

Cover Landfill Fees And Hauling Cost  (public hearing) 

9. Resolution Number 4951 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Deliver A Contract For A Program Manager For The Implementation Of 

The Community Spaces Plan   (public hearing) 

New Business  

10. Ordinance Number 2721 – Annual Jefferson County Tax Levy 

11. Ordinance Number 2722 – Annual Shelby County Tax Levy 

12. Resolution Number 4952 – A Resolution Amending The Vacation And Sick Leave 

Usage Policy For Full-Time Employees Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

13. Resolution Number 4953 – A Resolution Granting A Power Easement Adjacent To 

Vestavia Hills Elementary School-Cahaba Heights 

14. Resolution Number 4956 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Enter Into An Agreement With The Birmingham Swim League 

 



New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

15. Resolution Number 4954 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Replace A 

Compressor In The HVAC At The Vestavia Hills Library In The Forest  (public hearing) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

16. Ordinance Number 2711 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2419 Dolly Ridge Road; Jason and 

Stefanie Robinson  (public hearing) 

17. Ordinance Number 2712 – Rezoning – 2419 Dolly Ridge Road; Rezone From Jefferson 

County R-1 (Residential District) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (Residential District); Jason and 

Stefanie Robinson  (public hearing) 

18. Ordinance Number 2713 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2611 April Drive; Lot 9, Altadena 

Acres; Charles and Stephanie Langner  (public hearing) 

19. Ordinance Number 2714 – Rezoning – 2611 April Drive; Lot 9, Altadena Acres; Rezone 

From Jefferson County E-1 (Residential District) to Vestavia Hills E-2 (Residential 

District); Charles and Stephanie Langner  (public hearing) 

20. Ordinance Number 2715 – Annexation – 90-Day – 3139 Renfro Road; Lot 9, Block 2, 

South Vestavia Estates; Pamela and Joey Snow  (public hearing) 

21. Ordinance Number 2716 – Rezoning – 3139 Renfro Road; Lot 9, Block 2, South 

Vestavia Estates; Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 (Residential District) to Vestavia 

Hills R-2 (Residential District); Pamela and Joey Snow  (public hearing) 

22. Ordinance Number 2717 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2696 Altadena Road; Lot 1A, 

Resurvey of Lot 1, Altadena Park; Curtis and Lisa Martin  (public hearing) 

23. Ordinance Number 2718 – Rezoning – 2696 Altadena Road; Lot 1A, Resurvey of Lot 1, 

Altadena Park; Rezone From Jefferson County E-1 (Residential District) to Vestavia 

Hills E-2 (Residential District); Curtis and Lisa Martin  (public hearing) 

24. Ordinance Number 2719 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2470 Dolly Ridge Trail; Lot 5, Block 

2, Dolly Ridge Estates; Matthew and Jessica Jones  (public hearing) 

25. Ordinance Number 2720 – Rezoning – 2470 Dolly Ridge Trail; Lot 5, Block 2, Dolly 

Ridge Estates; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 (Residential District) to Vestavia 

Hills R-1 (Residential District); Matthew and Jessica Jones  (public hearing) 

26. Resolution Number 4955 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase 

Additional Handguns For The Police Department   (public hearing) 

27. Citizen Comments  

28. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
Page 1 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

MAY 15, 2017 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regular work session on this date at 
6:00 PM following posting/publication as required by Alabama law.  The Mayor called 
the meeting to order and the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry 

Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
Paul J. Head, Councilor 
George Pierce, Councilor 

 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
Dan Rary, Police Chief 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
Kevin York, Police Captain 
Terry Ray, Asst. Fire Chief 

 
 Joe Stuckey advised the Council of his desire to build a kiosk detailing the 
Cahaba River and a trail head at the former Altadena Valley Country Club.  He stated 
that he wanted to do this as his Eagle Scout project.  He showed drawings of what he had 
envisioned. 
 
 Mr. Downes advised him to coordinate his efforts with Brian Davis and to be 
mindful of neighbors in the area and how they feel about workers parking in the areas 
near their homes. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 The Mayor indicated that the Council needed to go into executive session to 
discuss pending/existing litigation.  Mr. Boone concurred that the Council could go into 
executive session for this matter.  The Mayor estimated the session would last 



City Council Minutes 
Page 2 

 

approximately 20 minutes and other business would follow.  He then opened the floor for 
a motion 
 
MOTION Motion to enter into executive session for discussion of pending/existing 

litigation for an estimated 20 minutes was by Mrs. Cook.  Second was by 
Mr. Weaver.  Roll Call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes   
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 The Council entered into Executive Session at 6:10 PM.  At 6:45 PM, the Council 
exited Executive Session and the Mayor called the work session back to order. 
 
 Mr. Downes gave updates on the following: 

• Results of inspections at Gold’s Gym. 
o Maintenance – 90% responsibility of the tenant. 
o Roof repairs needed estimated at $6,000 with City’s portion at 

an estimated $390. 
o HVAC would be paid by the tenant. 
o Preventative maintenance at estimated $22,000 
o Access drive repairs are regulated by easement agreement with 

CVS.  CVS is responsible to initiate repairs and the repair 
estimates are roughly $48,000 for the entire easement. 

o Insurance on the property is approximately $6,000 with 
prorata share of 90% to be paid by tenant. 

• Status of conveyance of property to the Board of Education as soon as 
agreements are made on access and parking. 

 
 Mr. Pierce commended Mr. Davis for his work with Republic to get much of the 
debris picked up around the City and stated that he hoped that they will anticipate pick up 
in the spring of next year. 
 
 Mr. Pierce discussed the selection of a project manager for the Community 
Spaces project and indicated that he did not participate in the interviews and will abstain 
from the selection voting. 
 
 Mrs. Cook left at 7:07 PM. 
 
 There being no further business, meeting adjourned at 7:10 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 



City Council Minutes 
Page 3 

 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
May 22, 2017 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

MAY 22, 2017 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry  
      Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
      Paul Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor  

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
      Kevin York, Police Captain 
      Marvin Green, Deputy Fire Chief 
      Terry Ray, Deputy Fire Chief 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Treasurer 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Lori Beth Kearley, Assistant City Engineer 
 
 
 Brian Davis, Public Services Director, provided the invocation, followed by the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

• Mr. Pierce welcomed Ben Chambliss and Roger Steur representing the Chamber 
of Commerce. 

• Mr. Head welcomed Kirk McCulley, member of the Vestavia Hills Parks and 
Recreation Board. 

 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
May 22, 2017 

Page 2 
 

 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

• Mr. Downes noted a standard statement in City RFPs (requests for proposal) and 
bids: “From the issue date of this RFP until respondents are selected and notified 
by the City, respondents to this RFP are not allowed to communicate their 
proposal or discuss the RFP with any member of the City Council or City staff, 
except for submission of questions as instructed herein. If a respondent is found in 
violation of this provision, the City reserves the right to reject the respondent’s 
submission.  

o Mrs. Cook stated that this establishes a fair playing field and allows the 
Council to make a better decision and she would not look favorably on a 
candidate that contacted her outside of the public interview process. 

• Mr. Downes stated the Jefferson County Board of Registrars will be relocating 
two of our city polling places: Horizon Church will be moved to Shades Mountain 
Church and New Merkel House to St. Stephens Church.  The change will occur 
until after the upcoming special August Senatorial elections. 

• The City Manager stated there has been progress on debris pickup.  He indicated 
that last week there were 72 new requests for debris pickup versus the number 
from the week before of 154.  The number of requests is diminishing and, over 
that two weeks, they satisfied more than 200 open requests. 

• The City Hall will be closed on Monday, May 29, in observance of Memorial 
Day. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• Mrs. Cook stated that the Board of Education has called a special meeting for 
June 12 at 6 PM.  The regular meeting will be held on June 28, also beginning at 6 
pm. 

• Mr. Pierce asked about the splash pad at Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex closing 
after the day it was opened.  Mr. Downes explained that the park opened this 
weekend and there was a large amount of activity.  As people began using the 
pad, they found, when the splash pad had become saturated with water, the sealant 
covering the cement became slippery. The city has closed the feature until the 
problem can be resolved. 

• The Mayor stated he attended the Alabama League of Municipalities convention 
at the BJCC. 

• The Mayor stated he also attended Wing Ding last weekend and the event was 
outstanding.  There were 19 teams competing and it was a great experience.  He 
congratulated Leadership Vestavia Hills for planning such a great city event. 

• Mr. Pierce stated that he attended the Chamber of Commerce board meeting and 
announced the 26th annual I Love America night, which will be Thursday, June 
29, 2017, with lots of activities for the entire family.  He asked everyone to go on 
the Chamber website to find details. 



City Council Minutes 
May 22, 2017 

Page 3 
 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation designating May 21-27, 2017, as Public 
Services Week.  Mr. Downes read the proclamation aloud and presented it to Brian 
Davis, Public Services Director, Christopher Brady, City Engineer, along with Public 
Services employees Ronald Jackson and Tim Parrish. 
 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner presented the financial reports for the month ending April 2017.  
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

The minutes of the May 8, 2017 (regular meeting) were presented for approval. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of May 8, 2017 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and 
second by Mrs. Cook.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – abstained  Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – abstained   Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2707 
 
Ordinance Number 2707 - Conditional Use Approval – 4249 Paxton Place; 

Conditional Use for Home Occupation; Amber Nix, Owner  (public hearing) 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2707 was made by Mr. Weaver and 

second was by Mrs. Cook.  
 
 Mr. Downes explained that Ms. Nix wishes to run a home business, Sign Gypsies.  
She has met the standard provisions for a home business license, obtained an approval 
from Liberty Park Joint Venture and received a positive recommendation from the 
Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
 Ms. Nix stated that her business is a popular franchise based in Texas.  She 
service places small signs in areas for recognition or celebration. 
 



City Council Minutes 
May 22, 2017 

Page 4 
 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2709 
 
Ordinance Number 2709 - An Ordinance Authorizing The Issuance And Making 

Provision For The Payment Of $400,000 General Obligation Warrant 
(Federally Taxable) Series 2017-BB&T1 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2709 was made by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Weaver.  
 
 Mr. Downes explained that Ordinance 2709 and 2710 are related items, with 
slight differences, but both are to enable the city’s purchase of real estate.  This bond 
issue would finance the potential purchase of Gold’s Gym and another property adjacent 
to Wald Park.   
 
 Mr. Turner obtained quotes from various banks for interest rates and attorney 
Heyward Hosch has finalized the terms of the separate warrant issues.  Mr. Hosch stated 
the property is tax-exempt and would constitute a general obligation warrant of the City.  
The debt can be prepaid at any time and is in standard form. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that both of these debts are amortized against the rental 
income of the Gold’s Gym facility. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public 
hearing and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2710 
 
Ordinance Number 2710 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Issuance And Making 

Provision For The Payment Of $9,100,000 General Obligation Warrant 
(Federally Taxable) Series 2017-BB&T2 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2710 was made by Mr. Weaver and 

second was by Mr. Pierce.  



City Council Minutes 
May 22, 2017 

Page 5 
 

 
 Mr. Downes explained this is the second request detailed as before. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked if this can also be prepaid. 
 
 Mr. Hosch stated that is correct but the loan is not tax-exempt after four years.  
Mr. Downes explained it could be refinanced to a lower rate if the opportunity occurs. 
 
 There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing 
and called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that the City was approached by the Board of Education 
regarding the donation of property for their construction project at Vestavia Hills 
Elementary Cahaba Heights (VHECH).  They are in need of the conveyance of some 
city-owned property to facilitate expansion of the school.  Because of the timing of the 
project, they have requested immediate action on this ordinance. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a motion for immediate consideration and action 
on Ordinance Number 2708. 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent and immediate consideration and action on 

Ordinance Number 2708 was by Mrs. Cook.  Second was by Mr. Weaver. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2708 
 
Ordinance Number 2708 - An Ordinance Declaring Certain Real Property As 

Surplus; Authorizing The City Manager And Mayor To Execute Documents 
Related To The Deeding Of Said Properties And All Other Documents 
Needed In Order To Secure Said Exchange And Access, Maintenance, and 
Shared Parking Agreement Between The City And The Vestavia Hills Board 
Of Education  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2708 was made by Mrs. Cook and 

second was by Mr. Head.  
 



City Council Minutes 
May 22, 2017 

Page 6 
 

 Mr. Downes stated that attorneys Whit Covin (representing the City) and Mark 
Boardman (representing the Board of Education) have worked on the agreement that is 
attached to the ordinance.  He stated further amendments occurred today concerning 
parking, maintenance and access issues, which required an alternate agreement to be 
submitted to the City today.  Mr. Downes requested consideration of the amended 
agreement, copies of which were provided in writing to the councilors.  The amended 
agreement has been “red-lined” to show the amendments.  Mr. Downes displayed 
exhibits to show the terms of the amended agreement. 
 
 Mrs. Cook stated that one of the benefits of the City’s conveyance of this property 
would be the ability of the school system to expand parking lanes which should help ease 
the flow of traffic of the area and minimize backup onto city streets. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated it allows a playground area nearer to the school. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked about the buffer areas of the school parking lots.  Mr. Downes 
explained that the plans have not been drawn, but the school has indicated they plan to 
keep buffers in place and remain sensitive to concerns of surrounding homeowners. 
 
 Mr. Downes indicated that the attorneys changed some terminology concerning 
easements and also future parks and recreation parking, with an option to be exercised 
within three years. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2708 was by Mrs. Cook.  Second 

was by Mr. Weaver.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
There being no one to address the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and 
called for the question. 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on June 12, 2017, at 
6:00 PM. 

• Resolution Number 4950 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To 
Allocate Funding Within The Gasoline Tax Fund Budget For Fiscal Year 2016-
2017 In Order To Cover Landfill Fees And Hauling Cost  (public hearing) 



City Council Minutes 
May 22, 2017 

Page 7 
 

• Resolution Number 4951 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City 
Manager To Execute And Deliver A Contract For A Program Manager For The 
Implementation Of The Community Spaces Plan   (public hearing) 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
 Donald Harwell, 1357 Willoughby Road, questioned the Council concerning the 
City’s debt obligations. 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 The Mayor indicated that the Council needed to go into Executive Session to 
discuss the good name and character of an individual.  He stated that the Session should 
take an estimated 30 minutes and there would be no business conducted following the 
Executive Session.  He opened the floor for a motion: 
 
MOTION Motion to move into Executive Session for an estimated 30 minutes to 

discuss the good name and character of an individual was by Mr. Head 
and second was by Mr. Weaver.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes    Motion carried. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that the Open Meetings Act allows the Council to enter into 
executive session under Title 36.25A.7(a)(1), Code of Alabama, 1975. 
 
 The Council exited the Chambers and moved into Executive Session at 6:53 PM.  
At 7:33 PM the Council re-entered the Chambers and the Mayor called the meeting back 
to order. 
 
 At 7:33 PM, Mr. Weaver made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Mr. Pierce.  The 
meeting adjourned at 7:34 PM. 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4950 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4950 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

ALLOCATE FUNDING WITHIN THE GENERAL FUND BUDGET FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 IN ORDER TO COVER LANDFILL FEES AND 

HAULING COST 

 

WHEREAS, on August 22, 2016 the City Council adopted and approved Resolution 

Number 4867 adopting a General Fund Budget, a Special Revenue Fund Budget, a Capital 

Project Fund Budget and a Sidewalk Project Fund Budget for the City of Vestavia Hills for fiscal 

year 2016-2017; and 

 WHEREAS, said Special Revenue Fund Budget annually includes approximately 

$20,000 to dispose of material to the landfill; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has not disposed of material for a period of three years; and 

WHEREAS, the City has had numerous large drainage pipe replacement projects, wind 

events with downed trees, and other various projects that have contributed to a high volume of 

material to be accumulated; and 

 WHEREAS, said recent clearing expenses exceeded the allocated budget expense; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and Finance Director has examined said budget and 

recommended the allocation of funding from the General Fund Budget to cover the expense of 

the landfill fees and hauling costs; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed the recommendation and find it 

is in the best public interest to approve that the City Manager allocate funding within the budget 

in order to cover the expense of the landfill fees and hauling costs. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to fund the landfill fees and hauling costs from 

General Fund Budget in the amount of $70,800; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4950 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 



Resolution Number 4950 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 





Resolution 4951 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4951 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 

TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A CONTRACT FOR THE 

IMPLEMENTATION STAGE OF THE COMMUNITY SPACES PLAN 

FOR A PROGRAM MANAGER 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills is entering the implementation stage of its 

Community Spaces Plan and there is a need for a program manager to lead the program 

validation/prioritization, pre-construction and construction phases of this effort; and 

 WHEREAS, the City held a competitive selection process to select said program 

manager; and 

 WHEREAS, the request for proposals included a defined scope of work that is attached 

as exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has selected TCU Consulting Services, LLC as the 

Community Spaces Plan Program Manager whose contract is attached as exhibit B; and 

 WHEREAS, said contract is divided into three phases of work, each requiring successful 

completion of the previous stage to include City Council approved funding for the next phase of 

work to proceed; and 

 WHEREAS, Phase One will require additional architectural, engineering and operational 

planning services outside of the contract with TCU; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager and Finance Director has examined said budget and 

recommended the allocation of funding from the Capital Project Fund and General Obligations 

Warrants Fund to cover the expense of Phase One Services, Phase Two Services, and Phase 

Three Services, and additional funding and services during Phase One for Architectural, Civil 

Engineering, and Operational Planning; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed the recommendation and find it 

is in the best public interest to approve that the City Manager allocate funding within the budget 

in order to cover the expense of Phase One Services, Phase Two Services, and Phase Three 

Services, and additional funding and services during Phase One for Architectural, Civil 

Engineering, and Operational Planning. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 



Resolution 4951 

Page 2 

 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the attached contract with TCU 

Consulting Services, LLC for the following contract amounts from the Capital Project 

Fund and General Obligations Warrants Fund: 

a. Phase One Services $120,000 

b. Phase Two Services $373,650 

c. Phase Three Services $1,002,000 

2. Furthermore, the following allowance for additional funding and services during Phase 

One are authorized up to and not exceeding the stated collective amounts from the 

Capital Project Fund and General Obligations Warrants Fund: 

a. Architectural  $8,500 

b. Civil Engineering $4,500 

c. Operational Planning $26,000 

3. This Resolution Number 4951 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 











Comm

Requ
Servi
 

Key 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Purp
The Ci
firms w
Spaces
http://
throug
bank p

Restr
From t
respon
with an
instruc
the righ
 

Inten
All rec
of inte
Vestav
will be
 

RFP C

munity Sp

uest for Pro
ices Assoc

Dates 
RFP RELE
INTENT T
PRE-PROP

o Ves
INQUIRIE
PROPOSA

pose 
ity of Vestavia
willing to prov
s Master Plan. 
/bit.ly/Comm
gh a yet to be d
placement of a

triction of
the issue date 

ndents to this R
ny member of
cted herein.  If
ht to reject th

nt to Resp
cipients of this
nt in writing b

via Hills, Alaba
 made to resp

Capital Project P

aces Plan I

oposals for
iated with 

EASE DATE: 
TO RESPOND
POSAL BRIE
stavia Hills Ci

ES RELATED
ALS DUE: Ma

a Hills is reque
vide program 
 Information

munitySpacesP
determined ca
approximately

f Commu
of this RFP u
RFP are not a
f the City Cou
f a responden

he respondent’

pond 
s RFP who int
by March 10, 2
ama 35216 or 

pondents upon

Program Manag

 

Implement

r Capital Pr
the Comm

March 1, 201
D DEADLIN

EFING AND 
ity Council Ch

D TO THE RF
rch 31, 2017

esting propos
management 
 on the maste

Plan . The new
apital finance p
y $50mm. 

unication
until responde
allowed to com
uncil or City st
t is found in v
’s submission.

tend on subm
2017, to Jeff D
electronically

n receipt of no

gement Services, 

tation 

rojects Pro
munity Spa

7 
NE: March 10,

MEETING: M
hambers, 10am
FP: March 24,

als from capit
services assoc

er plan and bu
w capital projec
plan that migh

ents are selecte
mmunicate the
taff, except fo
violation of th
  

mitting a respon
Downes at 10
y to jdownes@
otice of intent

released March 

 

ogram Man
ces Plan 

, 2017 
March 17, 201

m (1032 Mont
, 2017 

tal project pro
ciated with its 
dget can be fo
cts will be fun
ht include a bo

ed and notified
eir proposal o
r submission 

his provision, t

nse must prov
32 Montgome

@vhal.org. Aff
t to respond. 

1, 2017, Page 1

nagement 

17 
tgomery Hwy)

ogram manage
Community 

ound at 
nded by the  C
ond issuance o

d by the City, 
or discuss the R
of questions a
the City reserv

vide a notificat
ery Highway, 
firmative respo

1 of 10 

) 

ement 

City 
or 

RFP 
as 
ves 

tion 

onse 



RFP Capital Project Program Management Services, released March 1, 2017, Page 2 of 10 

Respondents providing notification they intend to respond will be provided with any 
addendum, answers to inquiries, etc. pertaining to this RFP.  Those respondents who do not 
provide a notification that they intend to respond to the RFP will not be allowed to present a 
proposal for services.  
 

Schedule and Delivery of Proposals 
Responses must be delivered to the Office of the City Manager, 2nd Floor, Vestavia Hills 
City Hall, 1032 Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 no later than March 31, 
2017,  at 4:00PM Central Time.  Late submissions will not be accepted.   
 
Please send one (1) printed copy and one (1) electronic copy (in PDF) via email to 
jdownes@vhal.org 

Inquiries Related to RFP 
Telephone inquiries with questions regarding clarification of any aspect of the RFP will not 
be accepted.  All questions must be written and emailed to the City Manager at 
jdownes@vhal.org no later than 5PM Central Time on March 24, 2017.  
 

General Requirements 
 
1. Applicable Law.  Any contract entered into as a result of this RFP shall be governed and 

interpreted under the laws of the State of Alabama. 
 

2. Duration of Response.  Compensation fee quotes from all respondents must be valid up 
to sixty (60) days from the date of the RFP due date.  The respondent’s fee quote 
selected under this RFP must be valid until successful completion of all capital projects. 
 

3. Contract Review.  Any professional services contract resulting from this RFP will  be 
subject to review by the City and its attorney. Draft contracts are encouraged as a part of 
submitted proposals 
 

4. Diversity/Equal Opportunity.  The City considers all proposals without reference to 
race, gender, cultural, ethnic, or other characteristics of the respondent or employees of 
the respondent.   
 

5. Additional.  The selected firm must be qualified to do business in the State of Alabama 
and any local jurisdiction within which the contract will be performed.  

Scope of Services 
The selected firm will be expected to perform all normal and customary services associated 
with capital project program management.  These services will include but not be limited to 
the scope of work established below:   
 



RFP Capital Project Program Management Services, released March 1, 2017, Page 3 of 10 

 

 

Phase One Scope (Anticipated time frame: Three Months) 
  Program Budget Validation and Execution Strategy 
 

Goal: The City’s “Community Spaces Master Plan” effort has effectively identified the needs 
and ideas for public spaces throughout the City based upon master plan input. The specific 
packaging/bundling of the various components from the Master Plan may or may not be in 
the most ideal grouping for effective execution based upon several factors such as location, 
timing restrictions, phasing needs, budget availability, funding mechanisms, community 
needs, etc. The goal of this phase is for the program manager to work with the City to 
develop the most effective and beneficial strategy for executing this group of projects over a 
multi-year period. This phase is meant to be a collaborative effort with various City 
representatives to develop the most ideal strategy given all factors. 
 
Potential Project Components: (This list is not all inclusive. Other small components not 
listed are included in the master plan document) 

1. Multi-Purpose Recreational Facility at Wald Park 
2. Premier Green Space at Wald Park 
3. Acquisition and Renovation of Gold’s Gym Facility 
4. Rehabilitation of Cahaba Heights Ballfield Complex 
5. Development of the Old Altadena Valley Country Club Property 
6. Redevelopment of the City’s Swimming Facility at Wald Park 
7. Wald Park Ballfield Improvements 

 
Overall Program Budget Validation: 
 Develop a master program budget inclusive of all projects. 
 Provide detailed conceptual estimates for each project. 

 
Phasing Plan: 
 Develop a preliminary comprehensive phasing and priority plan for each project. 

 
Overall Master Schedule: 
 Develop an overall master schedule for overall program 
 Develop individual project schedules, based on priority 
 

Recommendation Regarding Phase One Design Services Scope and Budget 
 Recommend the appropriate level of design services to assist in program validation 

and study as a part of the Phase One activities. 
 

Cash Flow: 
 Develop a funding distribution analysis to support funding and investment strategies 

 
Public Meetings: 
 Represent and support the City of Vestavia Hills in all public work sessions and City 

Council meetings, as it relates to The Community Spaces Plan. 
 

Refinement of Program Vision and Coordination with Stakeholders 



RFP Capital Project Program Management Services, released March 1, 2017, Page 4 of 10 

 Meet with stakeholders of the Community Spaces Plan to include the “steering 
committee” to provide guidance in program refinements. 

 

Phase Two Scope (Anticipated Time Frame: Six to twelve 
months) 

  Pre-Construction Phase 
  

Goal: The goal of this phase is to manage the multiple projects throughout the City 
as identified in phase one through the design and bidding phase as the City’s 
representative. The timing of this phase is anticipated to be six to twelve months but 
may take a longer period as determined in the outcome of phase one, and the 
management effort needed may vary at times based upon the selected strategy. An 
important task in this phase includes the cost estimating expectations at the 
schematic design completion, design development completion, and during the 
construction document phase (50% and 100%). As with all phases, it is the City’s 
intent that these efforts involve collaboration with all stakeholders- internal and 
external to the City. 
 
Pre-Design Phase Program Management: 
 
 Develop a Management Plan for the Overall Program.  
 
 Assist City of Vestavia Hills in acquiring any design services needed for the program. 
 
 Assist City of Vestavia Hills in review and preparation of the Agreement between City of 
Vestavia Hills and Designer. 
 
 Prepare a Master Schedule for the Overall Program.  
 
 Prepare a preliminary budget based on the separate projects required for the Program.  
 
 Prepare a cost analysis of various design and construction alternatives.  
 
 Develop and implement an information system in order to establish communication 
between City of Vestavia Hills, Program Manager, Designer, Contractors and other parties 
involved with the Program.  
 
Design Phase Program Management: 
 
 Organize, lead, and document project meetings during the Design Phase of each project. 
 
 Continuous monitoring of Designer’s compliance with the Management Plan, Master 
Schedule, and Budget. 
 
 Review the design documents and make recommendations as to constructability, 
scheduling, and time of construction; as to clarity, consistency, and coordination of 
documentation among Contractors; and as to the separation of the Projects into contracts 



RFP Capital Project Program Management Services, released March 1, 2017, Page 5 of 10 

for various categories of the Work. 
 
 Coordinate documents with regulatory agencies for review and advise of potential 
problems and suggested solutions regarding completion of such reviews. 
 
 Prepare general and supplemental conditions for the construction contracts and for 
materials or equipment procurement contracts for the projects, and  provide them to 
designer for inclusion in the design documents. 
 
 Assist City of Vestavia Hills in preparing documents concerning the budget for use in 
obtaining or reporting on program funding.  
 
 Overall management of the master schedule during the design phase. 
 
 Prepare a Pre-Bid Construction Schedule for each part of the Program and make the 
schedule available to the bidders during the Bid and Award Phase of the Projects. 
 
 Develop an estimate of the overall project and construction cost for each portion of the 
Program that will be submitted for proposals or bids by potential contractor. 
 
 Provide value engineering studies on major construction components. 
 
     
Bid and Award Phase Program Management: 
 
 Lead effort in developing lists of possible proposers or bidders and in prequalifying 
proposers or bidders. This service shall include preparation and distribution of 
questionnaires; receiving and analyzing completed questionnaires; interviewing possible 
proposers or bidders, bonding agents and financial institutions; and preparing 
recommendations for City of Vestavia Hills. Program Manager shall prepare a list of 
proposers or bidders for each bid package. 
 
 Conduct a campaign to increase interest among proposers or qualified bidders. 
 
 Assist architect and City of Vestavia Hills in preparing and placing notices and 
advertisements to solicit proposals or bids for all projects within the Program. 
 
 Lead and conduct all Pre-Bid Conferences. These conferences shall be forums for City of 
Vestavia Hills, Program Manager, and Designer to explain the Program requirements to the 
proposers or bidders, including information concerning schedule requirements, time and 
cost control requirements, access requirements, City of Vestavia Hills’s administrative 
requirements and technical information. 
 
 Develop and coordinate procedures to provide answers to proposers’ or bidders’ 
questions.  
 
 Review Addenda issued by designers for constructability, for effect on the budget, 
scheduling and time of construction, and for clarity and coordination in documentation.  
 



RFP Capital Project Program Management Services, released March 1, 2017, Page 6 of 10 

 In coordination with the City of Vestavia Hills, lead the process of the assembly, delivery 
and execution of the Contract Documents. Program Manager shall issue to Prime 
Contractor on behalf of City of Vestavia Hills the Notice of Award and the Notice to 
Proceed. 
 
 Overall management of the master schedule during the bid and award phase. 
 
 Prepare an estimate of costs for all Addenda  
 
 Provide a thorough evaluation of all the bids for responsiveness and pricing, including 
alternate bid prices and unit prices, and make a recommendation to City of Vestavia Hills 
regarding the award of the construction contract. 
 
 Develop Cash Flow Reports during the Bid and Award Phase. The Reports shall be based 
on actual contract award prices and estimated other construction costs for the duration of 
the Program. 
 

 

Phase Three Scope (Anticipated Time Frame: 24 months) 
  Construction Phase 
 

Goal: The goal of phase three is for the program manager to serve as the City’s 
representative to ensure the various projects get constructed in an efficient and 
efficient manner (on time and in budget). Particular emphasis and leadership should 
be given by the program management firm in adhering to the entire program budget 
for all projects including hard and soft costs of construction. 
 
 
Construction Phase Program Management: 
 
 Lead a Pre-Construction Conference with each Prime Contractor and review the 
Program/ Project staffing, scheduling reporting procedures, rules, and all other pertinent 
issues. 
 
 Verify that the required permits, bonds, and insurance, have been obtained by contractor. 
   
 Establish and implement procedures for reviewing and processing requests for 
clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents; shop drawings, samples and 
other submittals; schedule adjustments; change order proposals; written proposals for 
substitutions; payment applications; and the maintenance of logs. As City of Vestavia Hills’s 
representative, Program Manager shall be the party to whom all such information shall be 
submitted. 
 
 Examine Contractor’s requests for information, shop drawings, samples, and other 
submittals to determine the anticipated effect on the Program requirements, the Budget, 
and the Master Schedule. 
 
 Program manager is to lead meetings at the appropriate sites with each contractor, and as 
appropriate shall conduct coordination meetings with contractors, City of Vestavia Hills 



RFP Capital Project Program Management Services, released March 1, 2017, Page 7 of 10 

and Designers.  
 
 Program manager is to prepare and distribute meeting minutes for all meetings associated 
with the projects and distributing them to all the appropriate parties.   
 
 Coordinate all technical inspection and testing provided by others and distribute all 
inspection and testing reports to appropriate parties.  
 
 Establish and implement a change order control system.  
 
 Review the contents of all contractor-requested changes to the Contract Time or Price, 
endeavor to determine the root cause of the request, and assemble and evaluate information 
concerning the request. Make recommendations to City of Vestavia Hills regarding all 
proposed change orders. At City of Vestavia Hills direction, Program Manager is to prepare 
and issue to Prime Contractor appropriate change order documents.  
 
 Establish and implement a program to monitor the quality of the construction. The 
purpose of the program shall be to assist in guarding the City of Vestavia Hills against 
Work by Contractors that does not conform to the requirements of the Contract 
Documents.  
 
 Require and coordinate with each contractor that will perform work at the sites to prepare 
and submit a safety program, as required by the Contract Documents. 
 
 Coordinate with contractors to receive operation and maintenance manuals, warranties 
and guarantees for materials and equipment installed in the Program. 
 
 In consultation with Designer, Program manager will, prior to issuing a Certificate of 
Substantial Completion, prepare a list of incomplete work or work which does not conform 
to the requirements of the Contract Documents.  
 
 As appropriate, Program manager, in consultation with Designer, shall review the work 
and recommend to City of Vestavia Hills when the contractor’s work is substantially 
complete.  
 
 In consultation with Designer, Program Manager shall determine when the Program and 
contractor’s work is finally completed, shall Issue a Certificate of Final Completion and 
shall provide to City of Vestavia Hills a written recommendation regarding payment to 
Contractors. 
 
 Provide a thorough review of all contractor’s construction schedules and shall verify that 
the schedule is prepared in accordance with the requirements of the contract documents 
and that it establishes completion dates that comply with the requirements of the master 
schedule. 
 
 At a minimum, on a monthly basis, review the progress of construction schedule by each 
contractor, evaluate the percentage complete of each construction activity and shall review 
such percentages with each contractor.  
 



RFP Capital Project Program Management Services, released March 1, 2017, Page 8 of 10 

 Work with contractors to determine a schedule of values for the construction contract. 
The schedule of values will serve as the basis for the allocation of the total contract price to 
the activities shown on contractor’s construction schedule. 
 
 Advise City of Vestavia Hills as to the effect on the Budget of all proposed and approved 
change orders. 
 
 Review the payment applications submitted by the contractors and determine whether the 
amount requested reflects the progress of contractor’s work.  
   
Post-Construction Phase Program Management: 
 
 Coordinate and expedite submittals of information from contractors for preparation of 
record (“as-built”) drawings and specifications.  Provide all final copies to the City of 
Vestavia Hills. 
 
 Prior to the Final Completion of the Program, compile manufacturers’ operations and 
maintenance manuals, warranties and guarantees, and certificates, and index and bind such 
documents in an organized manner. This information shall then be provided to City of 
Vestavia Hills. 
 
 Represent the City of Vestavia Hills in obtaining an Occupancy Permit by coordinating 
final testing, preparing and submitting documentation to governmental agencies, and 
accompanying governmental officials during inspections of the Program. 
 
 Work with all project partners during the Post-Construction Phase and finalize all 
program related change orders. 
 
 Work with City of Vestavia Hills to manage warranty issues for a twelve month period 

post-construction of each project 
   
Overall Program Management  
 
 Provide overall management of the program master schedule and budget throughout all 
phases. 
 
 Monthly reports inclusive of schedule, program costs, budget updates, cash flow reports, 
important items of action, and an overall report of general progress on the overall program. 
 
 Provide recommendations on computer project management software system that is 
utilized by the City of Vestavia Hills, contractors, designers, and program manager to 
coordinate all program documentation and communication.  Include cost of such program 
in proposal. 
 
 Throughout the program provide accounting support to record and document all 
program related costs and provide monthly reports to City of Vestavia Hills.  At the 
conclusion of the program, prepare and deliver to the City of Vestavia Hills a final 
accounting report for the program.  
 



RFP Capital Project Program Management Services, released March 1, 2017, Page 9 of 10 

 Provide and maintain a management team for all projects within the Program and provide 
preconstruction and program management services as an agent of City of Vestavia Hills and 
establish and implement coordination and communication procedures among all parties.  
Management team, at a minimum, shall include staffing that will include preconstruction 
and project management professionals as wells as field management during the construction 
phase to monitor daily field inspections and observation of contractor’s progress, quality, 
and safety. 
 
 Provide personnel that will represent and support the City of Vestavia Hills in all public 
work session, City Council meetings, and any other meetings required by the city, as it 
relates to The Community Spaces Plan. 
 
 

Scope of Services 
Please limit your response to ten (10) pages or less; exclusive of transmittal letters or 
appendices.  
 
Responses should be arranged in the following format:   
1. Transmittal letter. 

 
2. Staffing and General Information.  Please provide firm information, including the name 

and address of your firm, address and telephone number for the firm’s primary office 
responding to the RFP.  Please provide an overview of staff that will be working with 
the City to include project leader, staffing approach/reasoning, and amount of staff 
dedicated to each phase of the project. 
 

3. E-Verify Memorandum of Understanding.  To be eligible as a vendor for the City of 
Vestavia Hills, the E-Verify MOU is required as documentation of compliance with the 
Beason-Hammon Taxpayer Relief and Citizen Protection Act.  
 

4. Alabama Experience/ Presence.  Please provide an overview of your firm’s Alabama 
experience over the last five years, highlighting capital project management experience 
for Alabama local governments during this period.  
 

5. Project Management.  Discuss your firm’s approach to managing a $50mm project that 
is estimated to take multiple years to finish.  Address any savings, scheduling or quality 
issues that your firm will be able to enhance through the different phases of the project 
along with how your firm will manage to bring it in on time and at or below budget.  
 

6. Conflicts of Interest.  Describe any conflicts of interest or potential conflicts of interest 
that may arise as a result of your firm being hired.  
 

7. References.  Provide three references for the day-to-day contact(s) assigned to the City’s 
projects. 
 

8. Fees/compensation.  The City reserves the right to negotiate compensation at or below 
any amount set forth in the proposal.  Enclosed are outlines of the minimum 
requirements for the scope of services according to project phase.  With said scope in 
mind, please list your firm’s proposed fees/compensation by phase according to the 
following: 



RFP Capital Project Program Management Services, released March 1, 2017, Page 10 of 10 

a. Phase One and Two Scope, Establish a detailed budget of fees to include an 
amount of the fee that will not exceed a stated budget figure with any 
stipulations to said fee. 

b. Phase Three Scope, Establish a fee budget based upon a projected program 
budget of $50mm subject to a minimum/maximum range of fees based upon 
said construction budget subject to adjustment upon final contract construction 
values. 

c. The City of Vestavia Hills reserves the right to adjust the Phase Three budget at 
the completion of Phase One and/or Two. 

 
9. Selection Criteria: Proposals will be reviewed by evaluators made up of elected and non-

elected officials of the City of Vestavia Hills. The evaluation process may include 
interviews and will be evaluated based upon (but not be limited to) experience, 
responsiveness to the RFP, cost, knowledge of the project areas and building climate in 
Vestavia Hills, and specific personnel assigned to the project. Ultimately, the Vestavia 
Hills City Council will be the decision maker for any program management contract. 

 
 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

VESTAVIA HILLS 

A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR COMMUNITY SPACES 
 
November 2016 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

VESTAVIA HILLS 

A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR COMMUNITY SPACES 
 
November 2016 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

Summary 
 
1. Community Spaces – Comprehensive Overview 

 

2. Wald Park – Master Plan Development 
A. Site Development Option 1 

B. Site Development Option 2 

 

3. Recreation Center Development 
A. Multipurpose Center Option 1 

B. Multipurpose Center Option 2 

C. Multipurpose Center Option 3 

 

4. Community Center Development 

 

5. Preliminary Budget 

 

6. Appendix 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

LIBERTY PARK/ 
SICARD HOLLOW 
ATHLETICS COMPLEX CAHABA 

HEIGHTS 

LIBERTY 
PARK 

ALTADENA 

CAHABA HEIGHTS 
FIELDS 

ALTADENA VALLEY PARK 

WALD PARK 

FORMER 
BERRY 
SCHOOL 

CITY HALL 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

2015 Recreation & Athletics Master Plan  
 
 Recreation & Athletics Master Plan 

competed in August of 2015 

 

 Recommendations: 

 Re-position quality of life assets 

 Elevate the quality of existing 

facilities 

 Increase the capacity of City 

athletic facilities 

 

 Facilities Master Plan builds on the 

foundation set by the City-wide 

 Recreation and Athletics Master Plan 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

2016 Planning Committee Recommendations 

at Cahaba Heights Fields 
Space / Site Planning and Infrastructure Assessment 

 

 Consultants Retained – Brailsford & Dunlavey, Caprine Engineering, HNP 
 Geotechnical Study – in progress 
 Conceptual Layout & Design – in progress 

 
o Rotate/Re-order field for optimal space 

o Drainage improvements 

o Parking needs 

o Building and Restroom upgrades 

o Potential Construction of “Miracle Field” for 

o Special Needs Players. 

o Upgrades/Improvements to New Merkel  

 House 

 Construction – To Be Determined 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

2016 Planning Committee Recommendations 

at Altadena Valley Park 
 
 

 Land for Park previously 

   acquired at No Cost – Complete 

 Conceptual Park Design – Initial design under consideration by City 

 Additional Land Acquired for 

   Western Entrance – Complete 

 Design for Construction of 

   Western Entrance – Complete 

 Planning and Design of Park – 

   To Be Determined 

 Construction – To Be Determined 

 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

2016 Planning Committee Recommendations 

at Altadena Valley Park 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

 Add covered hitting area(s) 

    at girls softball fields 

 Upgrade/relocate playground at 

    girls softball fields 

 Upgrade restrooms at 

    softball/baseball fields 

 Potential construction of “Miracle Field” 

    for special needs player games/functions 

2016 Planning Committee Recommendations 

at Liberty Park 

 Potential Athletic Improvements 

    To Be Determined 

at Former Berry School 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

 New Multi-purpose Recreation 

    facility 

 New Pool facility 

 New premier Green space and 

    Play Area improvements 

 Rehabilitate tennis facilities 

 Youth sports field improvements w/ artificial turf installation 

 Upgrades / improvements to Concession Stand and Press boxes 

 Construct covered batting areas with lighting 

 Preserve walking / jogging track and improve where necessary 

 New Walking paths in premier green space and pedestrian connectivity 

between City Hall and Wald Park 

2016 Planning Committee Recommendations 

at Wald Park 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

2. Wald Park 

Master Plan Development 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

EXISTING SITE PLAN 
WALD PARK AREA 

BOE 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 

SCHOOL 

PARKING 

PARK 

MAINT. 

TENNIS 

PLAYGROUND 

LODGE 

CIVIC  

CENTER 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

EX. 

FIELD 

POOL 

TENNIS 

PARKING 

PARKING 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

OPTION 1 
SITE DEVELOPMENT OPTIONS 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SITE PLAN  
OPTION 1 1 

EXPANDED 

SCHOOL 

PARKING 

PARK 

MAINT. 

TENNIS 

PLAYGROUND 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 

TENNIS 

BOE 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 

CIVIC  

CENTER 
MULTI-

PURPOSE 

PARK 

PLAYGROUND 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SITE PLAN  
OPTION 1 1 

EXPANDED 

SCHOOL 

PARKING 

PARK 

MAINT. 

TENNIS 

PLAYGROUND 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 

TENNIS 

BOE 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 
CIVIC  

CENTER 

MULTI-

PURPOSE 

PARK 

• Resurface all fields with artificial turf 
• Expand Field 1 and improve drainage 
• Construct 2 new covered batting cages 
• Improve press box/concessions 

building 
• Increase parking  
• Exchange Field relocated to Altadena,   
       Liberty Park or Former Berry School 
 

PLAYGROUND 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SITE PLAN  
OPTION 1 1 

EXPANDED 

SCHOOL 

PARKING 

PARK 

MAINT. 

TENNIS 

PLAYGROUND 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 

TENNIS 

BOE 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 

CIVIC  

CENTER 
MULTI-

PURPOSE 

PARK 

PLAYGROUND 

• Relocate Maintenance Building and staff parking 
• Relocate Lodge functions to Multi-Purpose Center 
• Create additional parking 
• Remove upper tennis courts 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SITE PLAN  
OPTION 1 1 

EXPANDED 

SCHOOL 

PARKING 

PARK 

MAINT. 

TENNIS 

PLAYGROUND 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 

TENNIS 

BOE 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 

CIVIC  

CENTER 
MULTI-

PURPOSE 

PARK 

• Create premier park with 
passive green space, open 
fields, and walking paths 

• Improve play areas 
• Improve school and park entry 

as combined road 
• Additional parking at VH West 

Elementary School and near 
Premier Park 

PLAYGROUND 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

GREEN SPACE 

PLAYGROUND 

OLD 

SKATE 

AREA 

HOMEWOOD CENTRAL PARK 

GREEN SPACE COMPARISON 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

GREEN SPACE 

PLAYGROUND 

OLD 

SKATE 

AREA 

HOMEWOOD CENTRAL PARK 

GREEN SPACE COMPARISON 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SITE PLAN  
OPTION 1 1 

EXPANDED 

SCHOOL 

PARKING 

PARK 

MAINT. 

TENNIS 

PLAYGROUND 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 

TENNIS 

BOE 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 

CIVIC  

CENTER 
MULTI-

PURPOSE 

PARK 

• Relocate Exchange Field to off-site location 
• Expand parking at VH Elementary School 
• No change assumed for BOE or Civic Center 
• Improve school and park entry as combined road 

PLAYGROUND 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SITE PLAN  
OPTION 1 1 

EXPANDED 

SCHOOL 

PARKING 

PARK 

MAINT. 

TENNIS 

PLAYGROUND 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 

TENNIS 

BOE 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 

CIVIC  

CENTER 
MULTI-

PURPOSE 

PARK 

PLAYGROUND 

• New Multi-Purpose Center 
• 3 basketball/multi-use courts 
• Locker rooms 
• Concessions 
• Multi-purpose rooms 
• Wet zone for aquatic concessions and 

bathrooms 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SITE PLAN  
OPTION 1 1 

EXPANDED 

SCHOOL 

PARKING 

PARK 

MAINT. 

TENNIS 

PLAYGROUND 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 

TENNIS 

BOE 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 

CIVIC  

CENTER 
MULTI-

PURPOSE 

PARK 

PLAYGROUND 

• New Wald Park Pool 
• Add pool amenities 
• Deck improvements 
• Update amenities to include new locker rooms and 

concessions in Multi-Purpose Center 
• Rehabilitate 4 existing tennis courts 
• Construct additional tennis court with lighting and seating 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SITE AERIAL 
OPTION 1 – VIEW LOOKING EAST  1 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 

TENNIS 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 

MULTI-

PURPOSE 

TENNIS 

BOE 

CIVIC  

CENTER 

PARK 

PARK 

MAINT. 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SITE AERIAL  
OPTION 1 – VIEW LOOKING WEST 1 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 

TENNIS 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 

MULTI-

PURPOSE 

TENNIS 

BOE 

CIVIC  

CENTER 

PARK 

PARK 

MAINT. 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

OPTION 2 
SITE DEVELOPMENT OPTIONS 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

EXISTING SITE PLAN 
WALD PARK AREA 

BOE 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 

SCHOOL 

PARKING 

PARK 

MAINT. 

TENNIS 

PLAYGROUND 

LODGE 

CIVIC  

CENTER 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

EX. 

FIELD 

POOL 

TENNIS 

PARKING 

PARKING 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SITE PLAN  
OPTION 2 2 

PARK 

MAINT. 

TENNIS 

PLAYGROUND 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 

TENNIS 

BOE 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 
CIVIC  

CENTER MULTI-

PURPOSE 

EXPANDED 

SCHOOL 

PARKING 

PARK 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SITE PLAN  
OPTION 2 2 

PARK 

MAINT. 

TENNIS 

PLAYGROUND 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 

TENNIS 

BOE 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 
CIVIC  

CENTER MULTI-

PURPOSE 

EXPANDED 

SCHOOL 

PARKING 

PARK 

• Relocate Exchange Field to off-site location 
• Expand parking at VH West Elementary School 
• No change assumed for BOE or Civic Center 
• School and park entry remain separate 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SITE PLAN  
OPTION 2 2 

PARK 

MAINT. 

TENNIS 

PLAYGROUND 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 

TENNIS 

BOE 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 
CIVIC  

CENTER MULTI-

PURPOSE 

EXPANDED 

SCHOOL 

PARKING 

PARK 

• Create premier park with 
passive green space, open 
fields, and walking paths 
 

• Switchback trails for more 
challenges 
 

• Pedestrian gateway from City 
Hall and new Community 
Center to Wald Park 
 

• Improve play areas  
 

• Additional parking at VH West 
Elementary School and near 
Premier Park 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

PLAY AREA  
BRIDGING CONTOUR CHANGE 
WITH TOWERS AND “LAND 
SLIDES” 

FIELD AREA 

FIELD AREA 

WOODED 
SWITCH 

BACK AREA 

SCHOOL PARKING AREA 

PARKING AREA 

TERRACED PICNIC AREAS 

CASTLE PARK 
REMINISCE  

BALL FIELDS  

PREMIER PARK SKETCH  
ACCESS AND CONTOUR IDEAS 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

PLAY AREA  
BRIDGING CONTOUR CHANGE 
WITH TOWERS AND “LAND 
SLIDES” 

FIELD AREA 

FIELD AREA 

SCHOOL PARKING AREA 

PARKING AREA 

BALL FIELDS  

PREMIER PARK SKETCH  
ACCESS AND CONTOUR IDEAS 

WOODED 
SWITCH 

BACK AREA 

TERRACED PICNIC AREAS 

CASTLE PARK 
REMINISCE  



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

PLAYGROUND INSPIRATION – GROUND ELEMENTS  

USE OF GRADE CHANGE AS AN ASSET WITH LONG SLIDES AND BRIDGES TO TOWER ELEMENTS 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

PLAYGROUND INSPIRATION – GROUND ELEMENTS  

USE OF GRADE CHANGE AS AN ASSET WITH LONG SLIDES AND BRIDGES TO TOWER ELEMENTS 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

PLAYGROUND INSPIRATION – GROUND ELEMENTS  

USE OF GRADE CHANGE AS AN ASSET WITH LONG SLIDES AND BRIDGES TO TOWER ELEMENTS 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

PLAY AREA  
BRIDGING CONTOUR CHANGE 
WITH TOWERS AND “LAND 
SLIDES” 

FIELD AREA 

FIELD AREA 

SCHOOL PARKING AREA 

PARKING AREA 

TERRACED PICNIC AREAS 

CASTLE PARK 
REMINISCE  

BALL FIELDS  

PREMIER PARK SKETCH  
ACCESS AND CONTOUR IDEAS 

WOODED 
SWITCH 

BACK AREA 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

FIELD AREA 

FIELD AREA 

SCHOOL PARKING AREA 

PARKING AREA 

CASTLE PARK 
REMINISCE  

BALL FIELDS  

PREMIER PARK SKETCH  
ACCESS AND CONTOUR IDEAS 

WOODED 
SWITCH 

BACK AREA 

TERRACED PICNIC AREAS 

PLAY AREA  
BRIDGING CONTOUR CHANGE 
WITH TOWERS AND “LAND 
SLIDES” 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

PLAYGROUND INSPIRATION – GROUND ELEMENTS  

USE OF GRADE CHANGE AS AN ASSET WITH LONG SLIDES AND BRIDGES TO TOWER ELEMENTS 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

PLAYGROUND INSPIRATION – GROUND ELEMENTS 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SITE PLAN  
OPTION 2 – AERIAL VIEW LOOKING EAST  2 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 

TENNIS 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 

MULTI-

PURPOSE 

TENNIS 

BOE 

CIVIC  

CENTER 

PARK 

PARK 

MAINT. 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SITE PLAN  
OPTION 2 – AERIAL VIEW LOOKING EAST  2 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 
TENNIS 

VH ELEM. 

SCHOOL 

MULTI-

PURPOSE 

TENNIS 

BOE 

CIVIC  

CENTER 

PARK 

PARK 

MAINT. 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

Site Development Options 

PARK 

MAINT. 

TENNIS 

PLAYGROUND 

F4 

F1 

F2 

F3 

POOL 

BOE 

VH 

ELEM. 

SCHOOL 

CIVIC  

CENTER 

MULTI-

PURPOSE 

EXPANDED 

SCHOOL 

PARKING 

PARK 

PARK 

MAINT. 

TENNIS 

PLAYGROUND 

F4 

F1 

F3 

POOL 

BOE 

VH 

ELEM. 

SCHOOL 

CIVIC  

CENTER 

MULTI-

PURPOSE 

EXPANDED 

SCHOOL 

PARKING 

PARK 

F2 

SITE PLAN  
OPTION 1 1 SITE PLAN  

OPTION 2 2 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

3. Recreation Center 

Development 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

OPTION 1 

BUILDING DEVELOPMENT OPTIONS 

ALL MULTI-PURPOSE AND/OR CIVIC FUNCTIONS 
TO BE LOCATED AT WALD PARK 

 

NO FUNCTIONS LOCATED OFF-SITE 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER SITE PLANS 
OPTION 1 1 MAIN FLOOR LEVEL – POOL ELEVATION 

PROGRAM COMPONENTS 

- 3 BASKETBALL/MULTI-USE 

COURTS 

- POOL SUPPORT 

- ADMINISTRATIVE SPACE 

- CIVIC / COMMUNITY SPACES 

 

 

TOTAL SF – 60,000 SF +/- 

 

 

 

ALL 

MULTI-PURPOSE 

AND 

CIVIC FUNCTIONS 

TO BE LOCATED AT 

WALD PARK 

 

NO FUNCTIONS 

LOCATED OFF-SITE 

EXPANDED 

POOL 

BASKETBALL 

BASKETBALL 

PARKING 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER PLANS 
OPTION 1 - MAIN FLOOR LEVEL – POOL ELEVATION 1 

EXPANDED 

POOL 

BASKETBALL/ 

MULTI-USE 

BELOW 

BASKETBALL/ 

MULTI-USE 

BELOW 

RUNNING TRACK ABOVE 

BASKETBALL/ 

MULTI-USE 

IMPROVED 

POOL DECK 

COVERED AREA 

POOL 

LOCKERROOMS 

& CONCESSION 

LOCKERROOMS 

FITNESS & ACTIVITY ROOMS 

ENTRY 

LOBBY 

GRAND 

STAIR TO 

BELOW 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER PLANS 
OPTION 1 - LOWER FLOOR LEVEL - EXCHANGE FIELD ELEVATION 

 
1 

LOWER FLOOR LEVEL 
EXCHANGE FIELD ELEVATION 

BASKETBALL/ 

MULTI-USE 

BASKETBALL/ 

MULTI-USE 

 

BLEACHERS 

BASKETBALL/ 

MULTI-USE 

B
L
E

A
C

H
E

R
S

 

B
L
E

A
C

H
E

R
S

 

GRAND 

STAIR TO 

BELOW 

LOCKERROOMS 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER PLANS 
OPTION 1 - UPPER FLOOR LEVEL 1 

EVENT SPACE 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER PLANS 
 1 

LEVEL 1 – POOL LEVEL LEVEL G – BASKETBALL LEVEL LEVEL 2 – EVENT SPACE 

SPACE PROGRAM COMPONENTS 

 

- 3 BASKETBALL/MULTI-USE COURTS 

- POOL SUPPORT 

- ADMINISTRATIVE SPACE 

- CIVIC SPACES 

 

 

TOTAL SF – 60,000 SF +/- 
 

 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER VIEWS 
OPTION 1   1 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

EXISTING VIEW – FROM HIGHWAY 31 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER VIEWS 
OPTION 1   1 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER VIEWS 
OPTION 1   1 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER VIEWS 
OPTION 1  1 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER VIEWS 
OPTION 1   1 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER VIEWS 
OPTION 1   1 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER VIEWS 
OPTION 1 1 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER VIEWS 
OPTION 1 1 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER VIEWS 
OPTION 1 1 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

OPTION 2 

BUILDING DEVELOPMENT OPTIONS 

MULTI-PURPOSE AND/OR CIVIC FUNCTIONS 

TO BE LOCATED PARTIALLY AT WALD PARK 

AND PARTIALLY OFF-SITE 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER SITE PLANS 
OPTION 2 2 MAIN FLOOR LEVEL – POOL ELEVATION 

SPACE PROGRAM 

COMPONENTS 

 

- 3 BASKETBALL/MULTI-USE 

COURTS 

- POOL SUPPORT  

- ADMINISTRATIVE SPACE 

 

 

TOTAL SF – 53,000 SF +/- 

 

 

ALL 

MULTI-PURPOSE 

AND 

CIVIC FUNCTIONS 

TO BE PARTIALLY 

LOCATED AT 

WALD PARK 

AND PARTIALLY 

OFF-SITE 
 

EXPANDED 

POOL 

BASKETBALL/ 

MULTI-USE 

BASKETBALL/ 

MULIT-USE 

PARKING 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER PLANS 
 2 

LEVEL 1 – POOL LEVEL LEVEL G – BASKETBALL LEVEL 

SPACE PROGRAM COMPONENTS 

 

- 3 BASKETBALL/MULTI-USE COURTS 

- POOL SUPPORT 

- ADMINISTRATIVE SPACE 

 

 

TOTAL SF – 53,000 SF +/- 
 

 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

OPTION 3 

BUILDING DEVELOPMENT OPTIONS 

ALL MULTI-PURPOSE AND/OR CIVIC FUNCTIONS 
TO BE LOCATED OFF-SITE 

 

NONE LOCATED AT WALD PARK 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER  
OPTION 3 3 

MAIN FLOOR LEVEL – POOL ELEVATION 

SPACE PROGRAM 

COMPONENTS 

 

- 3 BASKETBALL/MULTI-USE 

COURTS 

- POOL SUPPORT 

- ADMINISTRATIVE SPACE 

 

 

TOTAL SF – 45,000 SF +/- 

 

 

ALL 

MULTI-PURPOSE 

AND 

CIVIC FUNCTIONS 

TO BE LOCATED 

OFF-SITE 

 

NONE AT WALD PARK 

 
 

EXPANDED 

POOL 

BASKETBALL/ 

MULTI-USE 

BASKETBALL/ 

MULTI-USE 

PARKING 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

MULTI-PURPOSE CENTER PLANS 
 3 

LEVEL 1 – POOL LEVEL LEVEL G – BASKETBALL LEVEL 

SPACE PROGRAM COMPONENTS 

 

- 3 BASKETBALL/MULTI-USE COURTS 

- POOL SUPPORT 

- ADMINISTRATIVE SPACE 

 

 

TOTAL SF – 45,000 SF +/- 
 

 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

4. Community Center 

Development 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

E GOLD’S GYM PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT 
EXISTING SITE PLAN 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

GOLD’S GYM 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

COMMUNITY 

CENTER 

HEART OF THE CITY – CITY HALL / MUNICIPAL / COMMUNITY CENTER 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

EXISTING PHOTOS 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

OFFICE 
AREA 

WOMEN’S LOCKER 
ROOM 

MEN’S LOCKER 
ROOM 

POOL AREA BASKETBALL 
COURT 

MULTIPURPOSE 
AND SUPPORT 

ROOMS 

FITNESS ROOM 

LOBBY/ SHARED 
AREA 

GOLD’S GYM - EXISTING 
1ST FLOOR E 

R
A

C
Q

U
ET

B
A

LL
 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

OFFICE 
AREA 

POOL AREA 
OPEN TO BELOW 

BASKETBALL  
OPEN TO BELOW 

MULTIPURPOSE 
ROOM 

MULTIPURPOSE 
SPACE OPEN 

MULTIPURPOSE 
FITNESS AREA 

OPEN TO BELOW 

GOLD’S GYM - EXISTING 
2ND FLOOR E 

R
A

C
Q

U
ET

B
A

LL
 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

OFFICE 
AREA 

WOMEN’S LOCKER 
ROOM 

MEN’S LOCKER 
ROOM 

MEDIUM 
EVENT SPACE 

MULTIPURPOSE 
ROOMS 

LARGE EVENT 
SPACE 

LOBBY/ SHARED 
AREA 

GOLD’S GYM – OPTION 1 
1ST FLOOR 1 

1ST FLOOR 

EVENT SPACE, PREFUNCTION AREA, 

ADMIN, OFFICES 

 

2ND FLOOR 

AVAILABLE 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

GOLD’S GYM – OPTION 1 
2ND FLOOR 1 

OFFICE 
4,500 SF 

1ST FLOOR 

EVENT SPACE, PREFUNCTION AREA, 

ADMIN, OFFICES 

 

2ND FLOOR 

AVAILABLE 

OPEN TO BELOW 

OPEN TO BELOW 
OPEN TO BELOW 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

OFFICE 
AREA 

WOMEN’S LOCKER 
ROOM 

MEN’S LOCKER 
ROOM 

PRACTICE COURT/ 
WRESTLING 

BALLET/DANCE 

FITNESS ROOM 

FITNESS AREA 

LOBBY/ SHARED 
AREA 

GOLD’S GYM – OPTION 2 
1ST FLOOR 2 

R
A

C
Q

U
ET

B
A

LL
 

1ST FLOOR 

FITNESS/WORKOUT, PRACTICE COURT, 

BALLET/DANCE, LOCKER ROOMS, ADMIN 

 

2ND FLOOR 

EVENT SPACES, ACTIVITY ROOMS, 

PREFUNCTION AREAS 

LOBBY 
AREA 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

GOLD’S GYM – OPTION 2 
2ND FLOOR 2 

OFFICE 
4,500 SF 

SMALL CIVIC 
 SPACE 

1,000 SF  PRE-FUNCTION 
SPACE 

2,700 SF 

MEDIUM CIVIC 
 SPACE 

4,500 SF 

LARGE CIVIC 
 SPACE 

7,000 SF 

SHARED  
LOBBY 

1ST FLOOR 

FITNESS/WORKOUT, PRACTICE COURT, 

BALLET/DANCE, LOCKER ROOMS, ADMIN 

 

2ND FLOOR 

EVENT SPACES, ACTIVITY ROOMS, 

PREFUNCTION AREAS 

OPEN TO BELOW 

OPEN TO BELOW 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

HEART OF THE CITY – CITY HALL / MUNICIPAL / COMMUNITY CENTER 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

HEART OF THE CITY – CITY HALL / MUNICIPAL / COMMUNITY CENTER 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

HEART OF THE CITY – CITY HALL / MUNICIPAL / COMMUNITY CENTER 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

HEART OF THE CITY – POTENTIAL FUTURE CONNECTION – WALD PARK / COMMUNITY CENTER / CITY HALL 

WALD PARK 

CITY HALL & 
COMMUNITY 
CENTER 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

5. Preliminary Budget 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

 Design team developed a rough order of magnitude budget 

for each City location. 

 

 Budgets are based on experience with similar projects, 

assumptions regarding the scope of work and industry input. 

 

 Budget includes the hard and soft cost of construction 
 Hard costs were estimated on a per unit basis 

 Soft costs (A/E fees, owner's contingency, project mgmt, insurance, 

FF&E, etc.) were estimated as a percentage of total hard costs 
 

 

 All figures are in 2016 dollars and do not account for 

escalation 

 

 This is not a detailed cost estimating exercise as detailed 

design work has not been completed 

PREL IMINARY BUDGET –  SUMMARY 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

PREL IMINARY BUDGET –  SUMMARY 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

SURVEY 

AND 

QUESTIONS 

 
 

Here is the link for you to join: 

 

http://www.otmeet.com/256 
 
 

Thank you for participating! 

http://www.otmeet.com/256


COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

END 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

6. Appendix 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

PARKING ANALYSIS 

EXHIBIT A 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

PARKING SCENARIO 

PROPOSED PARKING 

- OPTION 1 TOTAL =  680 

- OPTION 2 TOTAL =  674 

EXISTING PARKING 

- WALD PARK =   247 

- ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, = 236 

    CIVIC CENTER, BOE 

EXISTINGTOTAL =   483 SPACES 



COMMUNITY SPACES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN                                                                                                                                                                                                               NOVEMBER 2016 

PARKING SCENARIO - PROPOSED 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS  
 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 
 

 

AGREEMENT AND GENERAL CONDITIONS 

BETWEEN OWNER AND OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE 

 

 
 

 

TABLE OF ARTICLES 

 

1. AGREEMENT 

2. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

3. OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE’S BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES 

4. OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

5. PARTIES’ REPRESENTATIVES 

6. CONTRACT DURATION 

7. COMPENSATION 

8. AMENDMENTS TO THE OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE SERVICES 

9. INSURANCE 

10. TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT AND OWNER’S                                                         

RIGHT TO PERFORM OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVES SERVICES   

11. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

12. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

13. OTHER CONDITIONS 

 

 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

 2 

 

 
 

 
 

ARTICLE 1 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

 

This Agreement is made this    day of              in the year     2017, by and between the  

                        

 

 

 

 

OWNER:     CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

(Name and Address) 1032 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY  

 VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA  35216    

        

      ATTENTION:  City Manager JEFF DOWNES 

     

and the 

 

OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE:  TCU CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC 

(Name and Address)               P.O. BOX 230487 

      MONTGOMERY, ALABAMA 36123 

 

For services in connection with the following          

PROGRAM:      

VESTAVIA HILLS COMMUNITY SPACES PLAN 

(See Exhibit “A”, dated November 2016.)  

       

 

 
 

 

Notice to the parties shall be given at the above addresses. 
 

PROGRAM MANAGEMENT OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE AGREEMENT AND 

GENERAL CONDITIONS BETWEEN OWNER AND OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

3 
 

ARTICLE 2 

 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

2.1 The Owner retains the Owner’s Representative to consult with and assist the Owner in 

developing and implementing the Owner’s Program as defined in this Agreement. The Owner’s 

Representative shall be the Owner’s agent, shall exercise its skill and judgment in furnishing 

Owner’s Representative services and shall not in any respect serve as a Construction 

Manager, General Contractor or Sub-contractor. 

 

2.2 TEAM RELATIONSHIP The Owner and the Owner’s Representative agree to proceed 

with the Program on the basis of trust, good faith and fair dealing, and shall take all actions 

reasonably necessary to perform this Agreement in an economical and timely manner. 

 

2.3 EXTENT OF AGREEMENT This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the parties, 

represents the entire and integrated agreement between the parties, and supersedes all prior 

negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. In the event of a conflict 

between this Agreement and any other contract entered into by the Owner in connection with the 

Program as between the Owner and the Owner’s Representative, this Agreement and Exhibits 

hereto shall govern. 

 

2.4 DEFINITIONS   

 

2.4.1 The Owner’s Representative Documents consist of: 

.1 written amendments to this Agreement signed by both                                                 

     the Owner and Owner’s Representative; 

.2 this Agreement; and 

.3 the Owner’s Program provided in Subparagraph 2.4.4. 

.4 Exhibit “A” City of Vestavia Hills Community Spaces Plan, dated November, 2016 

.5 Exhibit “B” City of Vestavia Hills Community Spaces Plan Implementation Request for 

Proposal, dated March 1, 2017 

.6 Exhibit “C” TCU Consulting Services Response to City of Vestavia Hills Community 

Spaces Plan Implementation RFP, dated March 31, 2017 

 

2.4.2 The services to be provided by the Owner’s Representative are the Basic Services as set 

forth in Article 3 of this Agreement. 

 

2.4.3 The term Day shall mean calendar day. 

 

2.4.4 The Owner’s Program is a description of the Owner’s objectives, including budgetary and 

time criteria, space requirements and relationships, flexibility and expandability requirements, 

special equipment and systems, and site requirements.  The Program description is provided in 

Article 1, above.  

 

2.4.5 A Hazardous Material is any substance or material identified now or in the future as 

hazardous under any   federal, state or local law or regulation, or any other   substance or 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

4 
 

material which may be considered hazardous or otherwise subject to statutory or regulatory 

requirements governing handling, disposal and/or clean-up.                    

 

ARTICLE 3 

 

OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE’S BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

The Owner’s Representative shall provide the services indicated in Paragraph 3.2 as the Owner’s 

Representative’s responsibility in the Basic Scope of Services during the Phases described 

below. These services may be provided in one or more of the phases of the Owner’s program or 

in one or more phases of a discrete project within the overall program.  The duration of the 

phases will be used as the basis of compensation of the Owner’s Representative as described in 

Article 7. Portions of each of the Phases of Service may commence before the previous phase is 

completed, in which case both phases may proceed concurrently. 

 

3.1 The three Phases of Service are defined as follows: 

 

3.1.1 PHASE ONE Program Budget Validation and Execution Strategy as required by Exhibit 

B, dated March 1, 2017.  Upon completion of Phase I Services written authorization by the 

Owner is required before the Owner’s Representative can proceed to the next phase of Service. 

 

3.1.2 PHASE TWO Preconstruction Phase as required by Exhibit B, dated March 1, 2017.  

Upon completion of Phase II Services written authorization by the Owner is required before the 

Owner’s Representative can proceed to the next phase of Service. 

 

3.1.3 PHASE THREE Construction Phase as required by Exhibit B, dated March 1, 2017.   

 

3.2 DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES RENDERED UNDER BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A description of basic services to be rendered by Owner's Representative under this Agreement 

is contained in Exhibit “B”. 

 

3.3 MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEMS Ownership of management information 

systems developed by the Owner’s Representative in the performance of this agreement remains 

the property of the Owner’s Representative. 

 

3.4 OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE’S SERVICES The Owner’s Representative shall 

perform its Services in accordance with the standard of care normally practiced by Owner’s 

Representative firms in performing services of a similar nature at the time and place the 

Services are performed.  

 

ARTICLE 4 

 

OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

4.1 INFORMATION PROVIDED BY OWNER 

 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

5 
 

4.1.1 The Owner shall provide full information in a timely manner regarding requirements for 

the Project, including the Owner’s Program requirements and other relevant information 

necessary for the Owner’s Representative to provide its services. 

 

4.1.2 The Owner shall provide reasonable evidence satisfactory to the Owner’s Representative, 

prior to commencing the Owner’s Representative Services and during the progress of the 

Owner’s Representative Services, that sufficient funds are available and committed for Owner’s 

Representative Services as may be approved in the course of this Agreement.  Unless such 

reasonable evidence is provided, the Owner’s Representative shall not be required to commence 

or continue the Owner’s Representative Services.  The Owner’s Representative may stop 

Owner’s Representative Services after thirty (30) days’ written notice to the Owner if such 

evidence is not presented within a reasonable time.  The failure of the Owner’s Representative to 

insist upon the providing of this evidence at any one time shall not be a waiver of the Owner’s 

obligation to make payments pursuant to this Agreement, nor shall it be a waiver of the Owner’s 

Representative’s right to request or insist that such evidence be provided at a later date. 

 

4.1.3 The Owner’s Representative shall be entitled to rely on the completeness and accuracy of 

the information required by this Paragraph 4.1. After reasonable evidence of financial 

arrangements has been furnished, the Owner shall not materially vary such financial 

arrangements without prior notice to the Owner’s Representative. 

 

4.2 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES DURING PHASES OF SERVICE 

 

4.2.1 The Owner shall contract directly with other firms for the provision of design, supervision, 

construction, other related services, and work and goods required to be implemented by the 

Program as described in Exhibit “B”.   

 

4.2.1.1   All contracts let by or on behalf of the Owner in connection with the Program shall 

contain a provision providing that the other party to the contract agree to defend, indemnify and 

hold the Owner’s Representative harmless from all claims for bodily injury and property damage 

to the extent of the negligence attributed to such acts or omissions by the other party to the 

contract or anyone employed directly or indirectly by them or anyone for whose acts they may be 

liable.  In addition, all such contracts shall contain a provision requiring the other party to 

include the Owner’s Representative as an additional named insured party, primary and 

noncontributory, on their insurance policies for the project.  Finally, all such contracts and any 

subcontracts thereunder shall include the Owner’s Representative expressly as a beneficiary of 

any “No damage for Delay Clause” or other clause limiting the liability of the Owner for 

economic losses suffered by a contractor or subcontractor. 

 

4.2.1.2 Other than as set forth on Exhibit “B”, the Owner’s Representative shall not be 

responsible for, nor liable to the Owner for any damages arising out of, the failure of other 

persons providing services, work or goods to the Owner to carry out the performance, of their 

contracts with the Owner. 

 

4.2.1.3 The Owner shall direct that communications with the Owner’s direct contractors shall be 

through the Owner’s Representative as Owner's Representative. 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

6 
 

 

4.2.2 If the Owner becomes aware of any error, omission or failure of the Owner’s 

Representative to meet the requirements of this Agreement the Owner shall give prompt written 

notice to the Owner’s Representative. 

 

ARTICLE 5 

 

PARTIES’ REPRESENTATIVES 

 

5.1 The Owner and the Owner’s Representative agree that the success of their contractual 

relationship will depend in large part on the individuals designated to represent the Owner and 

the Owner’s Representative for the purposes of this Agreement.  In order to further the team 

relationship contemplated by this Agreement, the Owner and the Owner’s Representative agree 

that their respective individual representatives will be mutually agreeable and that these 

representatives will not be changed except upon written consent, which will not be unreasonably 

withheld.  The Owner and Owner’s Representative shall each designate, in writing, two 

individuals, one as their primary representative and the second as an alternate to act in the 

absence of the primary representative.  The primary representative and the alternate shall each 

have the authority to bind the respective parties in all matters requiring the parties' approval, 

authorization or written noticeto the extent permitted by law. 

 

5.2 OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE’S REPRESENTATIVE The Owner’s Representative’s 

representatives shall be fully acquainted with the Owner’s Representative’s Scope of Services. 

The individuals identified on Exhibit “C” shall not be changed without the written consent of the 

Owner, which will not be unreasonably withheld, and each individual will meet or exceed the 

necessary hours worked as set forth in Exhibit “C” as necessary to complete the terms of this 

Agreement. 

 

5.3 OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVES The Owner’s representatives shall be fully acquainted 

with the Owner’s Program. 

 

5.4 The primary representatives shall communicate with each other as often as needed during the 

term of this Agreement and, at a minimum, shall confer either personally or by telephone at least 

weekly. 

 

ARTICLE 6 

 

CONTRACT DURATION 

 

6.1 COMMENCEMENT OF THE OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE SERVICES The 

Owner’s Representative Services shall commence on or about (DATE) upon written directive 

from Owner to Owner’s Representative. 

 

6.2 DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROGRAM SCHEDULE The Owner’s Representative, 

based upon information provided in the Owner’s Program, shall submit an initial Program 

Schedule and Management Plan to the Owner for review on or before (DATE). 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

7 
 

 

6.3 AMENDMENTS TO THE PROGRAM SCHEDULE The Owner’s Representative 

Services shall proceed in general accordance with the approved Program Schedule as such 

schedule may be amended from time to time, subject to Subparagraph 4.1.2.  In the event delays 

to the implementation of Owner’s Program are encountered for any reason, the parties agree to 

undertake reasonable steps to manage and mitigate the effect of such delays.  If causes beyond 

the Owner’s Representative’s reasonable control delay, extend or change the time for 

performance of the Owner’s Representative Services, the compensation for Owner’s 

Representative’s Service and the Schedule may be equitably adjusted.      

 

ARTICLE 7 

 

COMPENSATION 

 

7.1 COMPENSATION Upon execution of this Agreement, payments will be made as set forth 

in Article 13.1.   

 

7.2 The Owner’s Representative’s shall be compensated for the services described in the Exhibit 

“B” and as set forth in Article 13.1. 

 

7.3 ADJUSTMENT IN THE OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE’S FEE   

 

In addition to causes for fee adjustment noted, the Owner’s Representative’s Fee may be 

adjusted as follows: 

  

.1 For delays in the Owner’s Representative Services not caused by the Owner’s 

Representative, there may be an equitable adjustment in the Owner’s Representative’s 

Fee to compensate the Owner’s Representative for increased expenses; and 

 

.2 If the Owner’s Representative is placed in charge of managing the replacement of an 

insured or uninsured loss, the Owner’s Representative shall be paid an additional fee in 

the same proportion that the Owner’s Representative’s Fee bears to the estimated cost 

of the Owner’s Representative Services. 

 

7.4 PAYMENTS Payments for Owner’s Representative Services shall be due and payable 

within ten (10) days following presentation of the Owner’s Representative’s monthly invoice to 

the Owner.  If the Owner fails to pay the Owner’s Representative as agreed, then the Owner’s 

Representative shall have the right to stop the services.  Payments due but unpaid shall bear 

interest at the rate of 2% per annum.  

 

ARTICLE 8 

 

AMENDMENTS TO THE OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE SERVICES 

 

8.1 AMENDMENTS Amendments to the Owner’s Representative Services which are within the 

general scope of this Agreement may be accomplished by written amendment between the 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

8 
 

parties including adjustments in Compensation, Fee and Cost of Owner’s Representative 

Services as applicable. 

 

8.2 NO OBLIGATION TO PERFORM The Owner’s Representative shall not be obligated to 

perform additional Owner’s Representative Services until a written amendment has been 

executed by the Owner and Owner’s Representative. 

 

ARTICLE 9 

 

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE 

 

9.1 LIABILITY INSURANCE Each party shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining 

its own liability insurance for claims arising out of the performance of this agreement.  Owners 

Representative shall obtain and provide proof of general liability and errors and omissions 

coverage in the amount of $2,000,000 each on or before (DATE). 

 

ARTICLE 10 

 

TERMINATION OF THE AGREEMENT AND OWNER’S RIGHT TO PERFORM 

OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE’S SERVICES 

 

 

10.1 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE 

 

10.1.1 Upon Thirty (30) days’ written notice to the Owner, the Owner’s Representative may 

terminate this Agreement for any of the following reasons: 

 

 .1 If the Services have been stopped for a thirty (30) day period 

a. Under court order or order of other governmental authorities having 

jurisdiction. 

b. As a result of the declaration of a national emergency or other governmental 

act; or 

c. Because of the Owner’s failure to pay the Owner’s Representative in 

accordance with this Agreement; 

 

.2 If the Services are suspended by the Owner for sixty (60) days; 

 

.3 If the Owner materially delays the Owner’s Representative in the performance of the 

Owner’s Representative Services; 

 

.4 If the Owner otherwise materially breaches this Agreement; or 

 

.5 If the Owner fails to furnish reasonable evidence that sufficient funds are available and 

committed for the entire cost of the Project in accordance with Subparagraph 4.1.2 of 

this Agreement. 

 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

9 
 

10.1.2 Upon termination by the Owner’s Representative in accordance with Subparagraph 

10.1.1, the Owner’s Representative shall be entitled to recover from the Owner payment for all 

Owner’s Representative Services performed prior to termination, plus reasonable demobilization 

costs.   

 

10.2 OWNER’S RIGHT TO PERFORM OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE’S 

OBLIGATIONS AND TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CAUSE 

  

10.2.1 If the Owner’s Representative fails to perform any of its material obligations under this 

Agreement, the Owner may, after thirty (30) days’ written notice, during which period the 

Owner’s Representative fails to perform such obligation, undertake to perform such obligations. 

 

10.2.2 Upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to the Owner’s Representative, the Owner may 

terminate this Agreement for any of the following reasons: 

 

.1 If in the reasonable opinion of the Owner, the Owner’s Representative fails to perform 

to the satisfaction of the owner; 

 

.2 If the Owner’s Representative has received payment from the Owner but does not 

make proper payment to its consultants and service providers; 

 

.3 If the Owner’s Representative fails to abide by the orders, regulations, rules, 

ordinances or laws of governmental authorities having jurisdiction; or 

 

.4 If the Owner’s Representative otherwise materially breaches this Agreement. 

 

10.2.3  If the Owner’s Representative files a petition under the Bankruptcy Code, this Agreement 

shall terminate if the Owner’s Representative or the Owner’s Representative’s trustee rejects the 

Agreement or, if there has been a default and the Owner’s Representative is unable to give 

adequate assurance that the Owner’s Representative will perform as required by this Agreement 

or otherwise is unable to comply with the requirements for assuming this Agreement under the 

applicable provisions of the Bankruptcy Code. 

 

10.2.4 In the event the Owner exercises its rights under Subparagraph 10.2.1, 10.2.2, or 10.2.3, 

upon the request of the Owner’s Representative, the Owner shall provide a detailed accounting 

of the cost incurred by the Owner. 

 

10.3 TERMINATION BY OWNER WITHOUT CAUSE If the Owner terminates this 

Agreement other than as set forth in Paragraph 10.2, the Owner shall pay the Owner’s 

Representative for all Owner’s Representative Services executed to date and reasonable 

demobilization costs. 

 

10.4 SUSPENSION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE 

 

10.4.1 The Owner may order the Owner’s Representative in writing to suspend, delay or 

interrupt all or any part of the Owner’s Representative Services without cause for such period of 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

10 
 

time, not to exceed thirty (30) days, as the Owner may determine to be appropriate for its 

convenience. 

 

10.4.2 Adjustments caused by suspension, delay or interruption may be made for increases or 

decreases in the Owner’s Representative’s Compensation and schedule adjustments as necessary.  

No adjustment shall be made if another provision of this Agreement is applied to render an 

equitable adjustment. 

 

ARTICLE 11 

 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 

11.1 INITIAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement 

or its breach, the parties shall direct their Representatives to endeavor to settle the dispute first 

through direct discussions.  If the dispute cannot be resolved through direct discussions, the 

parties shall participate in mediation under the Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the 

American Arbitration Association then in effect unless the parties mutually agree otherwise 

before recourse to arbitration.  The representatives designated pursuant to Paragraph 5.1 shall 

attend all mediation sessions.  The location of the mediation shall be Vestavia Hills, Alabama.  

Once one party files a request for mediation with the other contracting party and with the 

American Arbitration Association, the parties agree to commence such mediation within sixty 

(60) days of filing of the request.  Either party may terminate the mediation at any time after the 

first session, but the decision to terminate must be delivered in person by the party representative 

to the other party’s representative and the mediator.  Engaging in mediation is a condition 

precedent to arbitration. 

 

11.2 AGREEMENT TO ARBITRATE Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to 

this agreement or its breach not resolved by mediation, except for claims which have been 

waived by the making or acceptance of final payment, shall be decided by arbitration in 

accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration 

Association then in effect unless the parties mutually agree otherwise.  Notwithstanding 

Paragraph 13.2, this agreement to arbitrate shall be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act.  The 

Arbitration hearings shall take place in Vestavia Hills, Alabama on consecutive workdays.  

Unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, the hearings shall conclude within two months of 

the first hearing date. 

 

11.3 NOTICE OF DEMAND A written demand for arbitration shall be filed with the American 

Arbitration Association and the other party to this Agreement within a reasonable time after the 

dispute or claim has arisen, but in no event after the applicable statute of limitations for a legal or 

equitable proceeding would have run. 

 

11.4 AWARD The arbitration award shall be final.  Judgment upon the award may be confirmed 

in any court having jurisdiction. 

 

11.5 SERVICE CONTINUANCE AND PAYMENT Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the 

Owner’s Representative shall continue the Owner’s Representative Services and maintain the 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

11 
 

approved schedules during any mediation or arbitration proceedings.  If the Owner’s 

Representative continues to perform, the Owner shall continue to make payments in accordance 

with this Agreement. 

 

11.6 COST OF DISPUTE RESOLUTION The cost of any mediation proceeding shall be 

shared equally by the parties participating.  The prevailing party in any dispute arising out of or 

relating to this Agreement or its breach that is resolved by arbitration or litigation shall be 

entitled to recover from the other party reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and expenses incurred 

by the prevailing party in connection with such arbitration or litigation. 

 

ARTICLE 12 

 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

12.1 ASSIGNMENT Neither the Owner nor the Owner’s Representative shall assign their 

interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the other except as to the assignment of 

proceeds. 

 

12.2 GOVERNING LAW This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the State of 

Alabama.  

 

12.3 SEVERABILITY The partial or complete invalidity of any one or more provisions of this 

Agreement shall not affect the validity or continuing force and effect of any other provision. 

 

 

12.4   NO WAIVER OF PERFORMANCE   The failure of either party to insist, in any one or 

more instances, on the performance of any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this 

Agreement, or to exercise any of its rights, shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment 

of such term, covenant, condition or right with respect to further performance. 

 

12.5 TITLES The title given to the Articles of this Agreement are for ease of reference only and 

shall not be relied upon or cited for any other purpose. 

 

ARTICLE 13 

 

OTHER CONDITIONS 

 

13.1 OTHER PROVISIONS 

 

The Compensation for the Owner Representative Basic Scope of Services as listed in Exhibit 

“B” to this Agreement shall be a fixed, stipulated sum amount of: 

 

Phase I Services  $   120,000.00 

Phase II Services  $   373,650.00 

Phase III Services:   $1,002,000.00 

Total    $1,495,650.00 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

12 
 

as listed in Exhibit “C”, dated March 31, 2017. 

 

It is anticipated that there may be a period of time between the completion of the Owner’s 

Representative work on a particular Phase of Services and the Owner’s written decision on 

whether to proceed to the next Phase of Service or to terminate the contract.  If the Owner 

terminates the Contract it shall do so in accordance with Article 10.3 of the Agreement. 

 

If the period of time between the completion of the Owner’s Representatives work on a 

particular Phase of Service and the Owner’s written decision exceeds thirty (30) days the Owner 

should act in accordance with Article 10.4 of the Agreement. 

 

For delays in the Owner’s Representative Services that exceed thirty (30) days and are not 

caused by the Owner’s Representative, the Owner’s representative reserves the right to request 

an equitable adjustment in the Owner’s Representative’s Fee to compensate the Owner’s 

Representative for increased expenses. 

 

By signing this contract, the contracting parties affirm, for the duration of the agreement, that 

they will not violate federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for employment, or 

continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama.  Furthermore, a 

contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in breach of the 

agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom. 

 

By signing this agreement, TCU Consulting Services, LLC represents that it is not currently 

engaged in, nor will it engage in, the boycott of a person or an entity based in or doing business 

with a jurisdiction with which Alabama can enjoy open trade. 

  

 

This Agreement is entered into as of the date entered in Article 1. 

 

 

OWNER:_______CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS___________ 

 

 

ATTEST:___________________________________________       

 

 

BY:___________________________________________________ 

 

  

PRINT NAME:__Mayor Ashley Curry__________________________ 

 

PRINT TITLE:__Mayor____________________________ 

 

 

 

 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

13 
 

ATTEST: 

 

BY:___________________________________________________ 

 

PRINT NAME: City Manager Jeffrey Downes 

 

PRINT TITLE:  City Manager 

 

(Note: In Manager-Council Act, any contract requires Mayor and City Manager signature if the 

contract in greater than one year in duration) 

 

 

 

OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE:__TCU CONSULTING SERVICES, LLC__ 

 

 

ATTEST:______________________________________________ 

 

 

BY:___________________________________________________ 

 

 

PRINT NAME:____W. Ken Upchurch, III____________________ 

 

 

PRINT TITLE:_____Managing Partner_______________________ 

 

 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

14 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 

City of Vestavia Hills Community Spaces Plan, dated November 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

15 
 

EXHIBIT B 

 

City of Vestavia Hills Community Spaces Plan Implementation Request for Proposal, dated 

March 1, 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Resolution 4951 

Exhibit B 

16 
 

EXHIBIT C 

 

TCU Consulting Services Response to City of Vestavia Hills Community Spaces Plan 

Implementation RFP, dated March 31, 2017 

 
 































































































































Ordinance Number 2721 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2721 
 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2653 PROVIDING 

FOR LEVYING OF MUNICIPAL TAXES FOR THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AND FOR ASSESSMENT AND 

COLLECTION THEREOF. 

 

WITNESSETH THESE HISTORICAL RECITALS: 
 

 WHEREAS, prior to November 15, 1982, the ad valorem tax rate of each One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed value of property in the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Jefferson County, Alabama, amounted to Eight and 21/100 Dollars ($8.21), which 

consisted of the following amounts: 

1. State of Alabama:  Sixty-five cents on each One  $ 0.65 

 Hundred dollars  ($100.00) of assessed value of 

 such property. 

 

2. Jefferson County:  One and  35/100  Dollars on   1.35 

 each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of  the  

 assessed value of such property. 

 

3. Jefferson County Schools:   Eighty-two    cents   0.82 

 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 

 the assessed value of such property. 

 

4. Special School District Tax:   Ninety-six  cents   0.96 

 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 

 the assessed value of such property. 

 

5. Special District Tax:  Fifty-five  cents  on  each   0.55 

 One   Hundred   Dollars    ($100.00)    of    the 

 assessed value of such property. 

 

6. Local General  Municipal  and  Special  Municipal   3.88 

 School  Taxes:   Three   and   88/100 

 Dollars    on   each    One   Hundred   Dollars 

 ($100.00)   of   the   assessed   value  of  such  ___________ 

 property. 

   TOTAL $ 8.21 
and; 



Ordinance Number 2721 

Page 2 

 

 WHEREAS, prior to November 15, 1982, the aggregate locally approved millage 

for general municipal purposes and local school taxes of 38.8 mills (being at the rate of 

$3.88 per $100.00 of assessed value) consisted of the following: 

  General Municipal Purposes  10.275 

  Garbage Collection   10.275 

  West Elementary - Warrants    3.150 

  High School and Operations  15.100 

 

     TOTAL 38.800  and; 

 

 WHEREAS, all real property in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, has been 

reappraised; and 

 WHEREAS, the Tax Assessor of Jefferson County in 1982 certified to the City 

of Vestavia Hills that total assessed value increased from $42,983,320.00 in 1981 to 

$63,427,627.00 in 1982; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, pursuant to the authority 

granted by Constitutional Amendment Number 373 (Lid Bill) of the Constitution of 

Alabama 1901, adopted Ordinance Number 633 on November 15, 1982, which reduced 

the ad valorem tax rate by 7.8 mills ($0.78 per $100.00 of assessed value).  Following the 

enactment of Ordinance Number 633, the total millage rate consisted of the following 

separate taxes: 

1. State of Alabama:  Sixty-five cents on  each One  $ 0.65 

 Hundred dollars  ($100.00) of assessed value of 

 such property. 

 

2. Jefferson County:  One and  35/100  Dollars on   1.35 

 each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of  the  

 assessed value of such property. 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2721 

Page 3 

 

3. Jefferson County Schools:   Eighty-two    cents   0.82 

 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 

 the assess value of such property. 

 

4. Special School District Tax:   Ninety-six  cents   0.96 

 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 

 the assessed value of such property. 

 

5. Special District Tax:  Fifty-five  cents  on  each   0.55 

 One   Hundred   Dollars    ($100.00)    of    the 

 assessed value of such property. 

 

6. Local General  Municipal  and  Special  Municipal   3.10 

 School Taxes:   Three   and   10/100 

 Dollars    on   each    One   Hundred   Dollars 

 ($100.00)   of   the   assessed   value  of  such  ___________ 

 property. 

   TOTAL $ 7.43 
 

After the adoption of Ordinance Number 633, the aggregate locally approved millage for 

general municipal purposes and local school district taxes of 31.0 mills (being at the rate 

of $3.10 per $100.00 of assessed value) consisted of the following: 

  General Municipal Purposes  0.821 

  Garbage Collection   0.821 

  West Elementary - Warrants  0.252 

  High School and Operations  1.206 

 

     TOTAL 3.100  and; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Board of Education unanimously adopted a 

resolution requesting that the ad valorem tax millage for education purposes be returned 

to the pre-November 15, 1982, rates by reinstating the 3.7 mills (.37 per $100.00 of 

assessed value) as follows: 

 West Elementary Warrants from   2.52 to   3.15 

 High School & Operations from 12.06 to 15.10; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said resolution was presented to the City Council on February 4, 

1985; and 



Ordinance Number 2721 

Page 4 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on February 11, 1985, on the issue of 

whether or not to reinstate the 3.7 mills for the benefit of the Vestavia Hills Board of 

Education; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Board of Education has requested the City 

Council to return the ad valorem millage tax rates that affect the Vestavia Hills School 

System to those rates in force and effective immediately prior to the adoption of 

Ordinance Number 633 on November 15, 1982, by reinstating Thirty-Seven Cents 

($0.37) on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of property so that 

the rates when adjusted will be as follows: 

1. The 12.06 High School mills ($1.206 on each $100.00 of assessed value) be 

adjusted to 15.1 mills ($1.51 on each $100.00 of assessed value). 

 

2. The 2.52 West Elementary mills ($0.252 on each $100.00 of assessed value) be 

adjusted to 3.15 mills ($0.315 on each $100.00 of assessed value); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, agreed to 

approve the request of the Board of Education by reinstating the 3.7 mills ($0.37 per 

$100.00 of assessed value).  The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

approved and adopted Ordinance Number 744 on February 18, 1985, which said 

Ordinance provided, among other things, as follows: 

1. Reinstatement of 3.7 mills (0.37 on each One Hundred dollars of assessed value). 

 

2. Established that the aggregate local millage for general municipal purposes and 

local school district tax rates are Three and 47/100 Dollars ($3.47) per One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of said property. 

 

3. That the $3.47 local millage consists of the following: 

  (a) General Municipal Purposes  0.823 

  (b) Garbage Collection   0.823 

  (c) West Elementary - Warrants  0.315 

  (d) High School and Operations  1.510 

      TOTAL 3.470   and; 



Ordinance Number 2721 

Page 5 

 

 

4. The total ad valorem tax rate of each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed 

value of property in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall amount to Seven 

and 80/100 Dollars ($7.80) and shall consist of the following: 

 

  State of Alabama   $ 0.65 

  Jefferson County    1.35 

  Jefferson County Schools   0.82 

  Special School District Tax   0.96 

  Special School District Tax   0.55 

  General Municipal Purpose Tax  1.96 

  Special Municipal School Tax  1.51 

 

     TOTAL $ 7.80 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills subsequently desired 

to return the millage tax rates that affect the General Fund to those rates in force and 

effective immediately prior to the adoption of Ordinance Number 633 on November 15, 

1982, by reinstating (4.1 mills) forty-one cents on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) 

of the assessed value of property so that the rates when adjusted will be as follows: 

1. The 8.23 General Fund Mills (0.823 on each $100.00 of assessed value) be 

adjusted to 10.275 mills (1.0275 on each $100.00 of assessed value). 

 

2. The 8.23 Garbage Collection Fund Mills (0.823 on each $100.00 of assessed 

value) be adjusted to 10.275 mills (1.0275 on each $100.00 of assessed value). 

 

 The total ad valorem tax rate of each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed 

value property in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall amount to Eight Dollars and 

21 Cents ($8.21) and shall consist of the following: 

1. State of Alabama:  Sixty-five cents on  each One  $ 0.65 

 Hundred dollars  ($100.00) of assessed value of such property. 

 

2. Jefferson County:  One and  35/100  Dollars on   1.35 

 each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of  the  

 assessed value of such property. 

 

3. Jefferson County Schools:   Eighty-two    cents   0.82 

 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 



Ordinance Number 2721 

Page 6 

 

 the assess value of such property. 

 

4. Special School District Tax:   Ninety-six  cents   0.96 

 on  each  One  Hundred  Dollars  ($100.00)  of 

 the assessed value of such property. 

 

5. Special District Tax:  Fifty-five  cents  on  each   0.55 

 One   Hundred   Dollars    ($100.00)    of    the 

 assessed value of such property. 

 

6. Local General  Municipal  and  Special  Municipal   3.88 

 School  Taxes:   Three   and   88/100 

 Dollars    on   each    One   Hundred   Dollars 

 ($100.00)   of   the   assessed   value  of  such  ___________ 

 property. 

   TOTAL $ 8.21 
 

 WHEREAS, on May 4, 1987, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, approved and adopted Ordinance Number 901, which established the ad 

valorem tax rate of Eight and 21/100 Dollars ($8.21) per One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) 

of assessed value as shown in the schedule immediately above; and 

 WHEREAS, a referendum was held in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on 

Tuesday, May 8, 1990, at which election the qualified electors of the city voted on the 

following issue: 

TEN AND ONE-HALF MILL TAX INCREASE 

IN VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, 

FOR PUBLIC SCHOOL PURPOSES 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 

 Shall the ad valorem tax presently being levied in the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, pursuant to provisions of the Constitution and the laws of 

the State of Alabama, including the election held in the City on April 28, 

1970, at the rate of One Dollar and Fifty-one Cents on each One Hundred 

Dollars worth of taxable property in the City be increased to the rate of 

Two Dollars and Fifty-six Cents on each One Hundred Dollars worth of 

taxable property in the City (an increase of One Dollar and Five Cents on 

each One Hundred Dollars worth of taxable property, or ten and one-half 

mills); such additional ten and one-half mill tax to be levied and collected 

for each year beginning with the levy for the tax year October 1, 1989, to 



Ordinance Number 2721 

Page 7 

 

September, 1990 (the tax for which year will be due and payable October 

1, 1990) and ending with the levy for the tax October 1, 2016, to 

September 30, 2017 (the tax for which year will be due and payable 

October 1, 2017) and to be used by the City Board of Education of the 

City of Vestavia Hills for public schools purposes? 

 

  _____________ For Proposed Taxation 

 

  _____________ Against Proposed Taxation 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

 The majority of the qualified electors voted “For Proposed Taxation”.  The 

specific totals were: 

 

For Proposed Taxation 3,097 

Against Proposed Taxation 3,065 

 

 Following the referendum vote on May 8, 1990, the aggregate ad valorem tax rate 

on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed value of property in the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, amounted to Nine and 26/100 Dollars ($9.26) 

and consisted of the following millages: 

1.  State of Alabama   $ 0.650 

2.  Jefferson County    1.350 

3.  Jefferson County Schools   0.820 

4.  Special School District Tax   0.960 

5.  Special School District Tax   0.550 

6.  Local General Municipal Purpose Tax 2.055 

7.  Special Municipal School Tax  2.560 

8.  West Elementary    0.315 

 

     TOTAL $ 9.260 

 

 On August 27, 1991, the voters of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, elected to 

renew the 8.2 mill Jefferson County School ad valorem tax. 

 On April 28, 1992, the voters of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, elected to 

renew the 5.5 mill Special School District ad valorem tax. 



Ordinance Number 2721 

Page 8 

 

 On May 3, 1993, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

approved and adopted Ordinance Number 1353, levying ad valorem taxes at the rate of 

$9.26 per $100.00 of assessed value on real and personal property located within the City 

for the period beginning October 1, 1993, and ending September 30, 1994. 

 On October 26, 1993, the voters of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, voted in 

favor of a 9.6 mill increase of the 5.5 mill ad valorem tax (under Section 2 of 

Amendment 3, sometimes referred to as Amendment Number 3, Three Mill District Tax) 

to 15.1 mills. 

 Because of the 9.6 mill increase of the 5.5 mill ad valorem tax to 15.1 mills, the 

9.6 mill ad valorem tax authorized by Amendment Number 82 of the Constitution of the 

State of Alabama was not renewed. 

 On March 11, 2014, the voters of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, voted in 

favor of renewing the levy of the said 10.5 mill tax commencing with the tax year for 

which taxes will become due and payable on October 1, 2018 and for each consecutive 

tax year thereafter without limit as to time. 

 On March 7, 2017, the voters of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, voted in 

favor of renewing the levy of the said 15.1 mill tax (9.60 and 5.50 Jefferson County 

Special School District Taxes) for a period of 25 years commencing on October 1, 2022 

and ending on September 30, 2046. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 SECTION ONE - TAX LEVY:   Taxes are hereby levied for the City tax year 

commencing on the first (1st) day of October 2017, on all real and personal property and 



Ordinance Number 2721 

Page 9 

 

other properties and franchises in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, subject to taxation 

by the laws of the State of Alabama, based on the valuation of said property as assessed 

for County taxation, as shown by the books of assessment for the State and County tax 

year ending on the 30th day of September, 2018, as follows: 

A. A tax for general municipal purposes of Two and 37/100 Dollars ($2.37) on each 

One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such property. 

 

B. A tax for public school purposes of Two and 56/100 Dollars ($2.56) on each One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such property. 

 

C. In summary, the aggregate local millage for general municipal purposes and local 

school district tax rates are Four and 93/100 Dollars ($4.93) per One Hundred 

Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such property. 

 

D. The local millage, for City accounting purposes, shall be allocated as follows: 

 

  General Municipal Purposes   1.0275 

  Garbage Collection    1.0275 

  West Elementary - Warrants     .3150 

  High School and Board Operations  2.5600 

 

      TOTAL 4.9300 
 

 SECTION TWO - SPECIAL DISTRICT TAXES:  In addition to the taxes 

levied in SECTION ONE above, taxes are hereby levied for the City tax year 

commencing on the 1st day of October, 2017, on all real and personal property and other 

properties and franchises in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, subject to taxation by 

the laws of the State of Alabama, based on the valuation of said property as assessed for 

County taxation, as shown by the books of assessment for the State and County tax year 

ending on the 30th day of September, 2018, as follows: 

A. A further tax of One Dollar and Fifty-one Cents ($1.51) of each One Hundred 

Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such property, in addition to the above 

mentioned taxes to be applied exclusively to public school purposes pursuant to 

the authority conferred by the Constitution and the election held on February 11, 



Ordinance Number 2721 

Page 10 

 

1969; renewed on April 28, 1992, and increased to 15.1 mills on October 26, 

1993. 

 

B. A further tax of Eighty-two Cents ($0.82) of each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) 

of the assessed value of such property, to be used solely and only for public 

school purposes pursuant to the Constitution of the State of Alabama. 

 

 Should the City Council of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, have no legal authority to 

provide for the levy, assessment and collection of the said Special School District Taxes 

as described in this SECTION TWO, then in such event, this SECTION TWO shall be 

considered as the City’s support of the Vestavia Hills Board of Education. 

 SECTION THREE - TAX BASIS AND WHEN DUE:  On and after the 1st day 

of October, 2017, all municipal taxes due the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall be 

based and due on all County assessments of the property within the limits of said County 

for the preceding year, and shall be due and delinquent at the time when State and County 

taxes for the preceding year are due and delinquent. 

 SECTION FOUR - EFFECTIVE DATE AND LIEN:  The levy of taxes made 

herein shall go into force and effect as of October 1, 2017, and shall on said date become 

a lien on the property subject thereto. 

 SECTION FIVE - TAX ASSESSOR AND TAX COLLECTOR, AND 

THEIR COMPENSATION:  The Tax Assessor and Tax Collector of Jefferson County, 

Alabama, shall be considered to be the Tax Assessor and Tax Collector respectively for 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and shall each receive as compensation for this 

service in assessing and collecting respectively the taxes herein levied, as fee equivalent 

to one-half of one per centum (1/2 of 1%) of the taxes collected and then remitted to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2721 

Page 11 

 

 SECTION SIX - CONFLICTS:  That all Ordinances, or parts of Ordinances, 

including Ordinance Number 2721, heretofore, adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, in conflict with the provisions hereof are hereby expressly 

repealed. 

 SECTION SEVEN - SEVERABILITY:  The provisions of this Ordinance are 

hereby declared severable.  Should any provision of this Ordinance be held invalid, the 

invalidity thereof shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

 SECTION EIGHT - INTENT:  It is the intent of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, with the passage of this Ordinance Number 2721, that the aggregate local 

millage for general municipal purposes and local school district tax rates be Four and 

93/100 Dollars ($4.93) per One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the assessed value of such 

property and consist of the following: 

 Special High School Tax and Operations  $ 2.560 

 General Municipal Including Garbage   2.055 

 West Elementary        .315 

 

      TOTAL $ 4.930 

 

 It is the further intent that the aggregate ad valorem tax rate of each One Hundred 

Dollars ($100.00) of assessed value of property in the City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson 

County, Alabama, shall amount to Nine and 26/100 Dollars ($9.26), which shall consist 

of the following millages: 

1.  State of Alabama   $ 0.650 

2.  Jefferson County    1.350 

3.  Jefferson County Schools   0.820 

4.  Special School District Tax   1.510 

5.  Local General Municipal Purpose Tax 2.055 

6.  Special Municipal School Tax  2.560 

7.  West Elementary    0.315 

     TOTAL $ 9.260 



Ordinance Number 2721 

Page 12 

 

 

 SECTION NINE - TAX ABATEMENT:  Whereas, the City of Vestavia Hills 

has annexed no parcels of land with tax abatements. 

 

 SECTION 10 - EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall become effective 

immediately upon its adoption and approval and is adopted and approved all in 

accordance with Title 11-51-40, et seq., Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2721 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 12
th

 day of June, 2017, as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2722 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2722 
 

 AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR LEVYING OF 

MUNICIPAL TAXES FOR THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AND FOR 

ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION THEREOF IN 

SHELBY COUNTY. 

 

  NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION ONE - TAX LEVY:  Taxes are levied for the City tax year 

commencing on the first (1st) day of October, 2017, on all real and personal property and 

other properties and franchises in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, subject to taxation 

by the laws of the State of Alabama, based on the valuation of said property as assessed 

for State taxation as shown by the books of assessment for the State and County tax year 

ending during the preceding year, as follows: 

A. A tax for general municipal purposes of Two and 37/100 Dollars ($2.37) on each 

One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of value of such property; 

B. A tax for Public School purposes of Two and 56/100 Dollars ($2.56) on each One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of value of such property; 

C. In summary, the aggregate local millage for general Municipal purposes and 

Municipal School tax rates are Four and 93/100 Dollars ($4.93) per One Hundred 

($100.00) of the value of such property; 

D. The local millage for the City’s accounting purposes shall be allocated as follows: 

   General Municipal Purposes   1.0275 

   Garbage Collection    1.0275 

   West Elementary Warrants   0.3150 

  High School and Board Operations  2.5600 

 

     Total   4.9300 



Ordinance Number 2722 

Page 2 

 

 

  SECTION TWO - SHELBY TAX LEVY:  Taxes are hereby levied by 

the Shelby County Commission §40-7-42, Code of Alabama, 1975 for the City tax year 

commencing on the first day of October, 2017, on all real and personal property and other 

properties and franchises in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, subject to taxation by 

the laws of the State of Alabama, based on the valuation of said property as assessed for 

County taxation, as shown by the books of assessment for the State and County tax year 

ending on the 30th day of September, 2018, as follows: 

A. A tax of Fifty Cents ($0.50) on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the value 

of such property for general fund purposes; 

B. A tax of One Dollar and Sixty Cents ($1.60) on each One Hundred Dollars 

($100.00) of the value of such property for school districts; 

C. A tax of Twenty-five Cents ($0.25) for each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of 

the value of such property for roads and bridges; 

D. In summary, the aggregate County millage for general purposes, countywide 

school taxes, and road and bridges is Two and 35/100 Dollars ($2.35) per One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of the value of such property. 

  It is the further intent that the aggregate ad valorem tax rate of each One 

Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of assessed value of property in the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Shelby County, Alabama, should amount to Seven and 93/100 Dollars ($7.93) which 

shall consist of the following millages: 

  State of Alabama    0.650 

  Shelby County     0.500 

  Shelby County School Countywide  1.600 

  Shelby County Road and Bridge  0.250 



Ordinance Number 2722 

Page 3 

 

  General Municipal Purpose Tax  2.055 

  Special Municipal School Tax  2.560 

  West Elementary Warrants   0.315 

 

      Total  7.930 

 

 SECTION THREE - TAX BASIS AND WHEN DUE:  On and after the 1st day 

of October, 2017, all municipal taxes due the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall be 

based and due on all County assessments of the property within the limits of said County 

for the preceding year, and shall be due and delinquent at the time when State and County 

taxes for the preceding year are due and delinquent. 

 SECTION FOUR - EFFECTIVE DATE AND LIEN:  The levy of taxes made 

herein shall go into force and effect as of October 1, 2017, and shall on said date become 

a lien on the property subject thereto. 

 SECTION FIVE - TAX ASSESSOR AND TAX COLLECTOR, AND 

THEIR COMPENSATION:  The Tax Assessor and Tax Collector of Shelby County, 

Alabama, shall be considered to be the Tax Assessor and Tax Collector respectively for 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and shall each receive as compensation for this 

service in assessing and collecting respectively the taxes herein levied, as fee equivalent 

to one-half of one per centum (1/2 of 1%) of the taxes collected and then remitted to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 SECTION SIX - CONFLICTS:  That all Ordinances, or parts of Ordinances, 

including Ordinance Number 2722, heretofore, adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, in conflict with the provisions hereof are hereby expressly 

repealed. 

 



Ordinance Number 2722 

Page 4 

 

  SEVERABILITY:  The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared 

severable.  Should any provision of this Ordinance be held invalid, the invalidity thereof 

shall not affect the remaining provisions of this Ordinance. 

  EFFECTIVE DATE:  This Ordinance shall become effective 

immediately upon its adoption and approval. 

  ADOPTED AND APPROVED this the 12
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2722 is a true 

and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 

of Vestavia Hills on the 12
th

 day of June, 2017, as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

and Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings  

      City Clerk 

 

 



Resolution 4952 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4952 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE VACATION AND SICK LEAVE 

USAGE POLICY FOR FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills is under the provisions of the Jefferson County 

Personnel Board to determine compensation, and other terms and conditions of employment for 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama employees; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has continuously provided certain vacation and sick leave benefits 

to all full-time employees of the City, and it wishes to continue to furnish such benefits to its 

employees; and 

 WHEREAS, the current City Vacation and Sick Leave Usage Policy for the City’s full-

time employees does not allow employees to use accrued vacation and sick leave time until they 

have completed twelve months of employment; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has been advised by the Jefferson County Personnel Board that it 

has amended the Vacation and Sick Leave Usage Policy for the City’s full-time employees for 

the use of accrued leave after ninety (90) days of employment, attached hereto, and marked as 

Exhibit A and is incorporated into this Resolution Number 4952 by reference as though set out 

fully herein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend the Vacation and Sick Leave Usage Policy for the 

City’s full-time employees for the use of accrued vacation and sick leave after ninety (90) days 

of employment; and 

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the implementation of the recommended amendments 

to the Vacation and Sick Leave Usage Policy will not increase the City’s payroll expenditures, 

nor will they consist of a reduction in any benefit accruals currently available to City employees; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the recommendations of the Jefferson 

County Personnel Board and has advised the City that the recommendations should be adopted; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed the recommendation and find it 

is in the best public interest to approve that the recommended changes to the Vacation and Sick 

Leave Usage Policy. 



Resolution 4952 

Page 2 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. All existing and future employees of the City of Vestavia Hills shall be authorized to use 

accrued vacation and sick leave time after completing ninety (90) day s of employment; 

and 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the revised Vacation and Sick Leave 

Usage Policy; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4952 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4952 
Exhibit A 

 

      Personnel Board Policy Number:   6.4 

Title:  Employee Vacation & Sick Leave Usage Policy 

Author of Policy:  Administration - Business Office 

Effective Date:  September 13, 2016 

Approved by Board Members:  September 13, 2016 

Last Revised: New 

 

PURPOSE 
Regular, predictable attendance is a key element to ensuring appropriate staffing levels for the completion 

of work and supporting the Personnel Board’s customers. This policy intends to promote effective 

organizational performance through appropriate management of employee leave accrual and usage.  This 

policy provides information on leave accruals and restrictions and guidance on the usage of leave.  

 

VACATION LEAVE ACCRUAL 
Annual leave with pay is available for vacation and personal matters for full-time classified employees.  

Paid vacation leave will accrue according to the following schedule: 

 

Years of    Hours of Vacation  

 Service    Accrued per Month  

Less than 12     8 hours 

At least 12, but less than 25   12 hours 

25 or more     16 hours 

 
An employee shall not accrue vacation leave during any month in which, for more than fifteen (15) 

business days of the month, the employee is on a leave of absence without pay, is suspended or is 

otherwise in a non-pay status. 

 

VACATION LEAVE USAGE 
Vacation cannot be taken in advance of the monthly accrual. 

Vacation leave accrued but not used may be accumulated during the calendar year with no maximum 

amount.  However, no more than 320 hours of accrued vacation leave may be carried forward from one 

calendar year to the next, except based on extenuating circumstances and with the documented approval 

of the Director or his designee.  Probationary employees are eligible to use accrued vacation time, in 

accordance with this policy, after ninety (90) days of continuous service. 

 

To schedule vacation time, an employee must submit in writing his/her request to his immediate 

supervisor/manager.  The supervisor/manager shall determine his/her preferred method of communicating 

the request in writing (e.g., an Outlook meeting request, an email, etc.)  While reasonable efforts will be 

made to accommodate vacation requests, supervisors/managers will make time off decisions based on a 

number of factors, including work & staffing requirements, seniority, and the date the request was 

submitted. It is the responsibility of the employee to ensure that they have enough accrued leave available 

to cover the dates requested and the responsibility of the manager to ensure sufficient leave is available 

for dates approved.  Employees are expected to request scheduled time away from work with as much 

advance notice as possible.  If a request is denied, the supervisor/manager will communicate the reason 

for denial to the employee.  Vacation requests made within less than one week of the desired vacation 

leave may be denied without further communication of the reason for denial.   

 



Resolution Number 4952 
Exhibit A 

 

SICK LEAVE ACCRUAL 
Sick leave with pay is not a right for which employees may make demand, but a privilege granted.  Sick 

leave may be granted only for qualified absences due to personal illness, personal dental/doctor 

appointments, attendance upon members of the immediate family whose illness requires the care of the 

employee, bereavement, treatment/care/counseling for the employee and any other reason related to the 

health and wellness of the employee which has been approved by the Director or designee. Immediate 

family is defined as the employee’s spouse, children, parents, grandparents, grandchildren, siblings, legal 

guardians and legal residents of the employee’s household, as well as the employee’s spouse’s 

“immediate family” and includes step-relationships.  All regular employees shall accrue sick leave at the 

rate of eight (8) hours per month of service.  An employee shall not accrue sick leave during any month in 

which, for more than fifteen (15) days of the month, the employee is on a leave of absence without pay, is 

suspended or is otherwise in a non-pay status.   

 

SICK LEAVE USAGE 
Sick leave cannot be taken in advance of the monthly accrual. Sick leave accrued but not used may be 

accumulated during the calendar year with no maximum amount. Probationary employees are eligible to 

use accrued sick time qualified absences, in accordance with this policy, after ninety (90) days of 

continuous service.  Any approved absence from work due to illness will be charged against the 

employee’s sick time.  If the employee has insufficient accrued sick leave, then the time will be charged 

against the employee’s accrued vacation leave or available variable days at the employee’s discretion.  

 

When requesting sick leave, the supervisor/manager reserves the right to require an employee to provide a 

doctor’s statement or written evidence prior to and/or immediately upon return to work in order to 

document the need for and/or length of the requested leave.  If this information is requested and the 

employee does not submit the requested documentation, the employee may be subject to corrective action 

in accordance with the policy on progressive discipline. 

 

An employee who is unable to report for work due to their own illness or illness of an immediate family 

member must contact his/her direct supervisor at least 30 minutes before his/her scheduled start time.  An 

employee may report his/her inability to attend work by phone call, to the direct supervisor (leaving a 

voicemail and then calling the second level supervisor if the direct supervisor does not answer), email 

directed to both the direct and second level supervisors, or text directed to both the direct and second level 

supervisors.  Employees must continue to call, email or text on a daily basis to report any inability to 

attend work for consecutive days’ absences.  If an employee’s absence exceeds seven (7) consecutive 

work days, please refer to the Personnel Board’s Family and Medical Leave Policy for information on 

requirements under that policy.  Failure to adhere to the requirements of this policy may result in 

disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. 

 

Employee absences will be tracked over each calendar year starting January 1st.  If an employee exceeds 

five (5) sick leave occurrences within the calendar year (January 1st through December 31st), the 

employee will be required to produce an original doctor’s note in order for the absence to be excused.  

Employees failing to produce a required doctor’s note will be subject to discipline under the progressive 

discipline policy.  An “occurrence” is an unscheduled absence from work of more than four hours.  If an 

employee has multiple absences across consecutive work days due to an extended illness, this event will 

be treated as a single occurrence.  If the single occurrence exceeds seven (7) days, please refer to the 

Personnel Board’s Family and Medical Leave Policy for information on requirements under that policy.  

Failure to adhere to the requirements of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including 

termination of employment. 

 

  



Resolution Number 4952 
Exhibit A 

 

LEAVE WITHOUT PAY 
The Board encourages employees to appropriately manage leave time and discourages the use of leave 

without pay (unless approved under the Personnel Board’s Family Medical Leave policy).  In situations 

where an employee who calls in sick, or is otherwise absent, and has insufficient accrued leave time (sick, 

vacation, or variable days) to cover the hours missed, the employee must submit a request for leave 

without pay to the Director.  Leave without pay will only be approved under extenuating circumstances.  

The Director may consider the reason for the unpaid leave request, historical patterns of leave usage, or 

any other factors deemed relevant to the situation in determining whether to approve a leave without pay 

request.  An employee found to be in abuse of leave time and leave policies may be subject to disciplinary 

actions up to and including termination of employment.  Please refer to the Board’s Progressive 

Discipline Policy.  

 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
The Board also requires accurate reporting and recordkeeping of hours worked by all staff.  Not 

submitting an accurate report of time worked or time away from work may result in corrective action.  It 

is the responsibility of the employee and the supervisor to track his/her available leave balances before 

requesting vacation or sick leave.  It is the responsibility of supervisors/managers to provide appropriate 

corrective action when an employee’s attendance is unsatisfactory.  Corrective action for attendance-

related issues will be in compliance with the Board’s Progressive Disciplinary Policy.  



Resolution Number 4953 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4953 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING ALABAMA POWER COMPANY A 

UTILITY EASEMENT FOR CONNECTION OF ELECTRICAL 

SERVICE 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign an agreement with Alabama 

Power Company to grant an easement, right and privilege as described in said 

agreement (copy attached); and 

2. Resolution Number 4953 shall become effective immediately upon adoption 

and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



Source of Title:

Deed Book 200304, Page 5172

EASEMENT-DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES

STATE OF ALABAMA

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON

This instrument prepared by: Dean Fritz

Alabama Power Company
Attn: Corporate Real Estate
2 Industrial Park Drive

Pelham, AL 35124

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That the undersigned The City of Vestavia Hills, a municipal corporation (hereinafter known as "Grantors", whether
one or more) for and in consideration of One and No/100 Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable consideration paid to Grantors in hand by Alabama Power
Company, a corporation, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, do hereby grant to said Alabama Power Company, its successors and
assigns (hereinafter the "Company"), the following easements, rights, and privileges:

Overhead and/or Underground. The right from time to time to construct, install, operate and maintain, upon, over, under and across the Property described
below, all poles, towers, wires, conduits, fiber optics, cables, communication lines, transclosures, transformers, anchors, guy wires, and other facilities useful or
necessary in connection therewith (collectively, "Facilities"), for the overhead and/or underground transmission and distribution of electric power and
communications, along a route selected by the Company, as determined by the location(s) in which the Company's facilities are to be installed. The width of the
Company's right ofwaywill depend on whetherthe Facilities are underground or overhead: for underground, the right ofwaywill extend five (5)feet on all sides of
said Facilities as and where installed; for overhead Facilities, the rightof way will extend fifteen (15) feet on all sides of said Facilities as and where installed.

The Company is further granted all the rights or privileges necessary or convenient for the full enjoyment and use of said right of way for the purposes above
described, including, without limitation, the right of ingress and egress to and from said Facilities, as applicable, the right to excavate for installation, replacement,
repair and removal of said Facilities, the right in the future to install intermediate poles and facilities on said right of way, the right to install, maintain, and use
anchors and guy wires on land adjacent to said right ofway, and also the right to cut, remove, and otherwise keep clearany and all trees, undergrowth, structures,
obstructions, orobstacles ofwhatever character, on, under and above said right ofway, as applicable. Further, with respect to overhead Facilities, the Company is
also granted the right to trim and cut, and keep trimmed and cut, all dead, weak, leaning or dangerous trees or limbs outside ofthe aforementioned right ofway
that, inthe opinion of the Company, may now or hereafter endanger, interferewith, or fall upon any of said overhead Facilities.

The easements, rights and privileges granted hereby shall apply to, and the word "Property" as used in this instrument shall mean the real property more
particularly described in that certain instrument recorded in Deed Book 200304, Page 5172, in the Office ofthe JudgeofProbate ofthe above named County.

In the event itbecomes necessary or desirable for the Company from time to time to move any ofthe Facilities in connection with the construction or improvement
of any public road or highway in proximity to the Facilities, Grantors hereby grant to the Company the right to relocate the Facilities and, as to such relocated
Facilities, to exercise the rights granted above; provided, however, the Company shall not relocate said Facilities on the Property at a distance greater than ten
feet (10') outside theboundary ofthe right ofway ofany such public road orhighway as established or re-established from time to time. This grant and agreement
shall be binding upon and shall inure tothe benefit ofGrantors, theCompany and each oftheir respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns
and the words "Company" and "Grantors" as used in this instrument shall be deemed to include the heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns of
such parties.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same to the Company, its successors and assigns, forever.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, thesaid Grantors have caused this instrument to beexecuted by , its authorized
representative, as of the of . <- - -

ATTEST (ifrequired) or WITNESS:
(Grantor)

By; By: (SEAL)
te: Its:

flndicate President, General Partner, Member, etc.l

For Alabama Power Company Corporate Real Estate Department Use Only

All facilities on Grantor. Choose an item Location to Location:

NE 1/4 of the SW % of Section 22, Township 18 South, Range 2 West
W.E. No. A6173-06-A417 Transformer No. T004C3 APC Document #.

REV 3/15/16

Resolution Number 4953 

Exhibit A 

Page 1



CORPORATION NOTARY

STATE OF

COUNTY OF

_, a Notary Public, in and for said County in said State, hereby certify that

_,whose name as of The

City of Vestavia Hills, a municipal corporation , a corporation, is signed to the foregoing instrument, and who is known to me,

acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of this instrument, he/she, as such officer and with full authority, executed the same

voluntarily for and as the act of said Corporation.

Given under my hand and official seal, this the day of , 20 .

[SEAL]

Notary Public

My commission expires:

Resolution Number 4953 

Exhibit A 

Page 2



SKETCH OF PROPOSED WORK - SIMPLIFIED W.E. 1 inch = 125 feet

Loc Transformer Loading

Voltage

Pri

Sec

Energized Work Permit Info

Sub ___________________
OCB/OCR ______________

Estimate No.

MISSALL#

Add'l Info.Customer

DistrictDivision

Location Section Range

X-________________   Y-_______________

Substation

County

UserID Created:

Cmted. Svc Date

Town

Township

Map Center UTM: Map Center LatLon:

Vestavia Elementary
Cahaba Heights

PD Birmingham

4401 Dolly Ridge Rd 8/30/17

Metro South                     Vestavia 02204 XG2125                     

A6173-06-A417                    

             459 KVA

             

9

          

12 KV

120/240
120/208

22 18S 02W

5/26/2017daswaffo

1720305 12143732 33.451898 -86.737996

Jefferson

Adam Swafford
APCo Engineer

Tel 205-226-1738
Radio 1*10*18496
daswaffo@southernco.com

Cahaba Heights DS

02204

SHORT CIRCUIT

   3Ø ________
   2Ø ________
   ØG ________

ØG-R ________280

4079

4673

5396

/
Work Location

_̂
Job Site

_̂

Job Site

To Cahaba Heights DS
Breaker 02204

Sectionalizing

Resolution Number 4953 

Exhibit A 

Page 3



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4956 
 

A RESOLUTION TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH THE 

BIRMINGHAM SWIM LEAGUE 

 

 WHEREAS, on September 4, 2002, the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills adopted and approved Resolution Number 3191 to authorize the Mayor to enter into 

an agreement with the Birmingham Swim League concerning a proposed extension of 

pool use with the construction of a “bubble”; and 

 WHEREAS, on December 16, 2002, the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills adopted and approved Resolution Number 3191-A to amend the above referenced 

agreement concerning contractors for construction of the “bubble” and liability insurance; 

and 

 WHEREAS, on May 15, 2006, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills 

adopted and approved Resolution Number 3629 to authorize the Mayor to extend the 

amended agreement with the Birmingham Swim League; and 

 WHEREAS, procedures outlined in the agreement between the City of Vestavia 

Hills (“City”) and the Birmingham Swim League (“BSL”) allowed for extensions of the 

agreement; and 

 WHEREAS, the agreement with the Birmingham Swim League agreement 

expired this year; and 

 WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Board would like to renew an agreement 

with the Birmingham Swim League on an annual basis due to the potential Community 

Spaces Plan; and 



 WHEREAS, the City Manager and the Public Services Director recommend the 

approval and agree it would be in the best public interest to enter into an agreement on an 

annual basis, a term to begin on May 27, 2017 and to terminate on May 26, 2018; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council agree it would be in the best public interest 

to enter into an agreement on an annual basis, a term to begin on May 27, 2017 and to 

terminate on May 26, 2018. 

 NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver an 

agreement with the Birmingham Swim League for the period of one year 

beginning on May 27, 2017 and to terminate on May 26, 2018; and 

2. A copy of said agreement is marked as “Exhibit A” attached to and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4956 as though fully written 

therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4956 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 1 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

 

 

POOL FACILITY USE AND OPERATION AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS POOL FACILITY USE AND OPERATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is 

made and entered into on this the _________ day of May, 2017, by and among the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation ( “City”); the Vestavia Hills Park and 

Recreation Board (“Board”); and Birmingham Swim League, an Alabama non-profit corporation 

(“BSL”). 

 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 

 WHEREAS, the City presently owns a swimming pool facility (“Pool”) in its park 

facility known as “Wald Park” (“Park”).  The Pool is an outdoor pool and operated by the Board 

only from Memorial Day weekend through Labor Day weekend; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Board, pursuant to Title 11-86-3, 

Code of Alabama, 1975, and Ordinance Number 2258, is responsible for the direction, 

supervision and promotion of such recreation programs as will contribute to the welfare of the 

residents of the City.  The Board also shall have control over all lands, buildings, equipment and 

other facilities assigned for recreational purposes to the Board by the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, BSL, is an Alabama not-for-profit corporation, an organization exempt 

from federal income taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, is a 

member club of USA Swimming and operates a year-round competitive swim team and swim 

lesson program.  BSL has utilized the Pool for many years for its summer swim team practice 

pursuant to agreements with the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and BSL entered into a Pool Facility Use and Operation 

Agreement on September 17, 2002 which, after two renewals, will expire on May 26, 2017; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City, Board and BSL wish to enter into a new agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City, Board and BSL wish to reduce their agreement to writing. 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:  That in 

consideration of the foregoing premises and the agreements set forth herein, the City, Board and 

BSL hereby expressly and mutually agree as follows: 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 2 

 

SECTION I 

TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 

 A. TERM:  The term of this Agreement shall be for a period of one (1) year 

beginning on May 27, 2017 and ending on May 26, 2018. 

 

 B. TERMINATION:  The City and Board shall have the right in their sole and absolute 

discretion to cancel and terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to 

BSL, which said notice shall specify the date on which the Agreement will terminate. 

 

SECTION II 

PERIODS FOR OPERATION OF POOL 

 

 During the Term, the parties to this Agreement shall be responsible for the operation of 

the Pool as follows: 

 

 A. RECREATION SEASON (SUMMER OPERATION PERIOD):  During the period 

beginning on the Saturday prior to Memorial Day weekend and ending on the Tuesday after 

Labor Day (the “Summer Operation Period”) during the Term, the City and Board will continue 

to operate the Pool as it has prior to this Agreement and will have complete responsibility for all 

aspects of the operation and maintenance of the Pool.  During each Summer Operation Period, 

BSL will be permitted to use the Pool as a practice facility during the days and hours set forth in 

the schedule immediately below. 

 

  1. BSL shall be allowed the exclusive use of the Pool in accordance with the 

following schedule: 

 

         Day     Hours 

 

   Monday  5:00 a.m.to 7:45 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. to 9:30 p.m. 

   Tuesday  5:00 a.m.to 7:45 a.m.  

   Wednesday  5:00 a.m.to 7:45 a.m.  

   Thursday  5:00 a.m.to 7:45 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. to 9:30 p.m. 

   Friday   5:00 a.m.to 7:45 a.m.  

   Saturday  5:00 a.m.to 10:30 a.m. 

   Sunday  None. 

 

  2. All members of the Birmingham Swim League shall be required to 

purchase a membership in the Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Program.  Members of BSL 

who are residents of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama shall pay the membership fees as 

aforesaid applicable to other Vestavia Hills residents.  Members of BSL who are not residents of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama shall purchase said memberships at the non-resident rate.  

All payments made by BSL members for the purchase of resident and non-resident memberships 

in Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation shall be paid to the City.  Members of BSL, residents of 

Vestavia Hills and any other non-resident must purchase a membership in the Vestavia Hills 

Parks and Recreation Program or pay a daily use fee to participate in Open Recreational Swim 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 3 

 

Time.  If members of BSL use the swimming pool during the Summer Operation Period and 

outside of the schedule set forth above, then in such event said BSL members shall also purchase 

a swim pass or pay a daily fee. 

 

 B. YEAR ROUND SEASON (EXTENDED OPERATION PERIOD):  During the period 

beginning on the Tuesday after Labor Day and ending on the Saturday, May 26, 2017, prior to 

the following Memorial Day weekend (the “Extended Operation Period”) BSL, subject to the 

ultimate responsibility of the City and Board, shall, on an exclusive basis, operate the Pool for 

the City and Board. 

 

 C. TRANSITIONS:  The parties will cooperate with each other during the transitions 

from Summer Operation Period to Extended Operation Period and from Extended Operation 

Period to Summer Operation Period so as to assure an orderly operation of the Pool, including 

providing reasonable access to the Pool facility to the party in the process of assuming 

operational responsibility prior to its assumption of operations.   

 

SECTION III 

HEATING EQUIPMENT AND RELATED ITEMS 

 

 A. BUBBLE:  The Bubble heretofore utilized by BSL shall not be installed on the 

swimming pool during the term of this Agreement. 

 

 B. POOL WATER HEATING EQUIPMENT:  BSL will, at its sole expense, acquire and 

install for use at the Pool water hearing equipment to heat the water in Pool.  The equipment 

selected and plans for its installation shall be approved by the Board Director and the City, which 

approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Installation of the gas lines necessary for the 

operation of said Pool water heating equipment shall be done by BSL at its sole expense. 

 

 C. BULKHEAD:  During the Extended Operation Period only, BSL will, at its sole 

expense, be permitted to install a movable bulkhead (“Bulkhead”) to permit the Pool to be 

partitioned into two (2) 25-yard long swimming areas.  Prior to the Summer Operation Period, 

the Bulkhead shall be removed at the sole expense of BSL. 

 

 D. OWNERSHIP OF IMPROVEMENTS TO POOL: 

 

  1. City: The Pool water heating equipment and gas line shall become the 

property of the City once the same has been installed by BSL. 

 

  2. BSL: The Bulkhead acquired by BSL for use at the Pool shall remain its 

property. 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 4 

 

SECTION IV 

CONDUCT OF OPERATIONS DURING EXTENDED OPERATION PERIOD 

 

 During the Extended Operation Period, the Pool shall be operated by BSL as follows: 

 

 A. GENERAL:  BSL shall, subject to the times set forth in paragraph B below, 

conduct such aquatic programs, including swim team practice for BSL’s swim team and Swim 

America swim lesson program, as it shall determine and shall determine the hours of operation of 

such programs.  The diving board will not remain in operation during the Extended Operation 

Period. 

 

 B. USE BY RESIDENTS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS:  Residents of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama shall be allowed to swim in one of the two 25-yard pool areas during 

normal weeks of operation (or in a portion of the Pool when the Pool is in “long course” 

configuration), subject to closure of the Pool for special events, in accordance with the following 

schedule for every week during the Extended Operation Period: 

 

  Open Recreational Swim Time Schedule: 

 

  Monday through Friday 3:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. 

  Saturday   Noon to 5:00 p.m. 

  Sunday   1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 

  Lap Swim Only Schedule: 

 

  Monday through Friday 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. 

 

 The above schedule may be changed by BSL upon the prior written approval by the City 

and Board, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 

  1. Open Recreational Swim Times:  The times during the days set forth in 

the schedule immediately above shall hereinafter be referred to as “Open Recreational Swim 

Times” for residents of Vestavia Hills during the Extended Operation Period. 

 

  2. Fees for Open Recreational Swim Times:  

 

   (a) Vestavia Hills Residents:  Vestavia Hills residents may swim 

during the Open Recreational Swim Times provided they: 

 

    (i) purchase a membership in Vestavia Hills Park and 

Recreation, and in addition purchase a swim pass for the Extended Operation Period; or 

 

    (ii) pay a daily fee for each and every day that they swim 

during the Extended Operation Period. 

 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 5 

 

   (b) Members of BSL:  Members of BSL may swim during the 

Extended Operation Period provided they first purchase a membership in Vestavia Hills Parks 

and Recreation.  Members of BSL who are residents of Vestavia Hills shall pay at the resident’s 

rate, while members of BSL who are not residents of Vestavia Hills shall pay at the non-resident 

membership rate. 

 

   (c) Other Non-Residents:  Other non-residents of Vestavia Hills may 

swim during the Open Recreational Swim Times provided they: 

 

    (i) purchase a non-resident membership in Vestavia Hills Park 

and Recreation and in addition purchase a non-resident swim pass for the Extended Operation 

Period; or 

 

    (ii) pay a daily fee for each and every day that they swim 

during the Extended Operation Period on a non-resident basis. 

 

    (iii) all revenue derived from the sale of resident and non-

resident memberships in Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Program shall be paid over and the 

exclusive property of the City for the Board. 

 

 C. CLOSURE OF POOL FOR SPECIAL EVENTS:  It is contemplated by the parties that 

BSL will conduct swim meets and other special events at the Pool.  BSL shall be permitted to 

close the Pool for purposes of conducting swim meets or other special events; provided, that BSL 

shall give the Park Director at least fourteen (14) days prior written notice of any such closure.  

In no event shall the Pool be closed by BSL for the purpose of conducting a swim meet or other 

special event more than eight (8) weekends during any one Extended Operation Period.  Swim 

meets may in some instances begin on Friday evening and may involve closing the Pool 

beginning at some point on Friday in order to properly set up the Pool for the meet. 

 

 D. PROGRAMS SPONSORED BY BSL:  Residents of the City of Vestavia Hills may 

participate in any other program offered by BSL during the Extended Operation Period; provided 

the said resident shall have first paid the fee or charge for said participation in said program.  The 

fee or charge for each different program sponsored by BSL shall be established by BSL upon 

prior written approval by the City and Board, which said approval shall not be unreasonably 

withheld. 

 

 E. DAILY INSPECTIONS:  BSL shall conduct daily inspections of the Pool and 

promptly report in writing to the Department of Parks and Recreation any necessary maintenance 

and repairs to the Pool that are the City’s responsibility (restrooms, buildings, etc.).  BSL will 

take any and all actions necessary with respect to the operation of the Pool as may be required to 

maintain and keep a rating of at least ninety (90) on inspections by the Jefferson County 

Department of Health. 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 6 

 

 F. MONTHLY REPORTS:  BSL shall provide monthly reports to the City and Board 

by the 15
th

 day of the following month concerning programs and their enrollment and the amount 

of general use.  A representative of BSL is required to attend the monthly Park and Recreation 

Board meetings to discuss any concerns that the Board might have and any concerns that BSL 

may have.  BSL shall provide the City and Board access during normal business hours to all 

electronic and hard data, books, records and correspondence pertaining to services under this 

Agreement for the purpose of audits or verification of programming details.  Records shall be 

available for review for one (1) year following expiration of this Agreement. 

 

 G. NOTICE OF PROGRAMS:  BSL shall provide the Board Director seven (7) days’ 

advance notice of all program schedules prior to publicizing said programs. 

 

 H. PAYMENT OF TAXES AND OTHER CHARGES:  BSL shall make full payment and 

be responsible for any and all taxes and other charges incurred by or against any of the services 

provided by BSL and Pool staff under its operation. 

 

 I. WORKER’S COMPENSATION:  BSL shall maintain and pay the premiums, 

throughout the Term of this Agreement or any renewal thereof, for a policy or policies of 

worker’s compensation insurance with such limits as may be required by law. 

 

 J. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  BSL shall be solely responsible for compensating 

its staff.  BSL shall comply with all necessary federal, state and local laws, ordinances, 

regulations, fees, permits, licenses and insurance pertaining to services provided and the 

employment on its staff.  Such persons shall be employees or independent contractors of BSL 

and shall not be deemed employees or agents of the City. 

 

 K. COMPLIANCE WITH CITY ORDINANCES, POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS:  

BSL shall, during its use of the Pool and other City property in the Summer Operation Period 

(see II-A) and its operation of the Pool and other city property during the Extended Operation 

Period (see II-B), strictly comply with any and all ordinances and resolutions of the City and the 

policies, rules and regulations of the Department of Public Parks and Recreation, as may be 

adopted or amended from time to time.  If BSL violates any one of the said ordinances, 

resolutions, polices, rules or regulations, then in such event a warning letter will be sent by the 

City for the first two (2) violations.  Any further violations in a twelve (12) month period shall 

constitute a breach of contract.  After twelve (12) months a warning shall be deleted. 

 

 L. SECURITY:  BSL shall be responsible for any and all security during the Extended 

Operation Period, including specifically but not limited to: 

 

  1. Keeping order during hours of operation; 

 

  2. Keeping the premises locked and securing the facility when it is closed so 

as to prohibit access by persons during hours that the Pool is closed; 

 

  3. Securing the Pool in the event of any emergency such as hurricanes and/or 

tornadoes; 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 7 

 

 

 

 

  4. Keeping an adequate number of lifeguards on duty at all times when the 

Pool is open for use by residents of the City of Vestavia Hills and others.  The number of 

lifeguards to be furnished by BSL shall be dependent on usage; and 

 

  5. The Pool shall be locked by BSL every night and whenever the Pool is 

closed to the public.  BSL shall be responsible for any repairs or replacement that result from 

vandalism for failure to lock or keep the Pool facility secure, including locker rooms and 

restrooms. 

 

 M. COOPERATION WITH DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION:  BSL shall 

cooperate with the City of Vestavia Hills Department of Parks and Recreation during its use of 

the Pool during the Summer Operation Period and its operation during the Extended Operation 

Period.  BSL shall disseminate City and Board provided information regarding Department of 

Parks and Recreation activities, programs and events when requested to do so. 

 

 N. COOPERATION WITH VESTAVIA SWIM ASSOCIATION (VSA):  BSL shall 

cooperate with the Vestavia Swim Association (VSA) prior to the beginning of each Summer 

Operation Period to facilitate the beginning of its summer swim teach program and shall also 

coordinate with VSA regarding all shared equipment.  VSA shall be given use of the Pool 

facility for afternoon practice sessions during the last two (2) weeks of the Extended Operation 

Period of every year during the Term and renewal thereof. 

 

 O. HANDICAPPED ACCESSIBILITY:  Programs offered by BSL shall be handicapped 

accessible. 

 

SECTION V 

FEES AND CHARGES 

 

 A. AMOUNT:  BSL shall, subject to the prior written approval by the City and Board, 

establish the prices and fees to be charged by BSL for the sale of merchandise and the services 

provided in BSL programs during the Extended Operation Period.  The City and Board shall not 

unreasonably withhold their approval. 

 

 B. OWNERSHIP:  BSL shall retain and own all of the fees and charges referred to in 

paragraph A above after payment of the expenses for which it is responsible; provided, however, 

that the City shall receive, retain and own any and all fees paid by anyone, including specifically 

BSL members, Vestavia Hills residents and other non-resident citizens, for memberships in the 

Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation and for swim passes during the Summer Operation Period. 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 8 

 

 C. CHARGES TO VESTAVIA HILLS RESIDENTS:   

 

  1. Vestavia Hills Residents:  Vestavia Hills residents may swim during the 

Open Recreational Swim Times Provided they: 

 

   (a) purchase a membership in Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation, and 

in addition purchase a swim pass for the Extended Operation Period; or 

 

   (b) pay a daily fee for each and every day that they swim during the 

Extended Operation Period. 

 

  2. Members of BSL:  Members of BSL may swim during the Extended 

Operation Period provided they first purchase a membership in Vestavia Hills Parks and 

Recreation.  Members of BSL who are residents of Vestavia Hills shall pay at the resident’s rate, 

while members of BSL who are not residents of Vestavia Hills shall pay at the non-resident 

membership rate. 

 

  3. Other Non-Residents:  Other non-residents of Vestavia Hills may swim 

during the Open Recreational Swim Times provided they: 

 

   (a) purchase a non-resident membership in Vestavia Hills Park and 

Recreation and in addition purchase a non-resident swim pass for the Extended Operation 

Period; or 

 

   (b) pay a daily fee for each and every day that they swim during the 

Extended Operation Period on a non-resident basis. 

 

SECTION VI 

MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF POOL 

 

 A. SUMMER OPERATION PERIOD:  During the Summer Operation Period, the City 

and Board shall be responsible for the day-to-day management and operations of the Pool and for 

the routine maintenance and upkeep of the Pool, except for the Pool water heater and related 

equipment, which shall be the obligation of BSL. 

 

 B. EXTENDED OPERATION PERIOD:  During the Extended Operation Period, the 

responsibility for the routine maintenance, upkeep and day-to-day management and operation of 

the Pool shall be as follows: 

 

  1. Inside the Fence:  BSL shall be responsible for the maintenance, upkeep 

and day-to-day management and operations of the Pool, including all facilities and equipment 

within the fenced area of the Pool.  BSL shall keep a neat and orderly operation at all times and 

shall be solely responsible for the necessary routine maintenance service to properly maintain the 

Pool and area inside the fence. 

 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 9 

 

  2. Lighting:  The City shall maintain lighting for the area of the Pool and 

shall be responsible for replacement of bulbs and other electrical repairs not caused by BSL or its 

staff. 

 

  3. Fence:  The cost of maintaining and repairing the fence shall be paid one-

half (1/2) by the City and one-half (1/2) by BSL. 

 

  4. Garbage: 

 

   (a) The City shall provide garbage and trash receptacles and 

dumpsters. 

 

   (b) Trash and garbage collected from within the Pool facility, 

including the locker rooms and concession stands shall be removed and deposited in the 

dumpsters by BSL. 

 

   (c) Dumping of the garbage and trash dumpsters shall be the 

responsibility of the City. 

 

  5. Inspections:  The City shall have the right to inspect the Pool and 

facilities within the fence at any time.  BSL shall undertake immediately the correction of any 

deficiency noted in the inspections.  BSL shall provide the Board Director and the Vestavia Hills 

Police Department a set of all keys to the Pool facility. 

 

  6. Utilities: 

 

   (a) Gas:  BSL shall be responsible for paying the gas bill incurred at 

the City rate. 

 

   (b) Electricity:  BSL shall be responsible for paying the electric bill 

incurred at the City rate. 

 

   (c) Water:  The City shall pay the water bill for the Pool; provided, 

however, if the City determines that the water usage is not consistent with the water bills 

incurred by the City prior to the execution and delivery of this Agreement, then in such event the 

BSL shall pay said water bills. 

 

  7. Signs:   

 

   (a) City: The Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Foundation was 

established on March 29, 1990 as amended on April 12, 1990.  Its main purpose is to raise funds 

through contributions and other means to be utilized for the improvement and expansion of park 

and recreation facilities in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama.  Both parties acknowledge and 

agree that the fundraising efforts by the Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Foundation are 

continuous in nature. 

 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 10 

 

   (b) BSL: BSL has made it known to the City that it will be seeking 

corporate and other sponsorship to help defray its operational cost.  Accordingly, BSL has 

requested permission to display appropriate signage for sponsors inside the Pool area in effort to 

help raise funds.  The City hereby grants BSL permission to display said signage; provided, 

however, that the sponsors of BSL are not in direct competition with sponsors of the Vestavia 

Hills Parks and Recreation Department or the Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Foundation.  

BSL shall seek the written approval of the Director of the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation 

Board before making said signage, causing said signage to be prepared or displaying said 

signage in the Pool area as aforesaid.  The Board Director shall not unreasonably withhold 

permission for the display of said signage.  Should any of said signage result in a conflict or 

direct competition to sponsors of the City, Board or the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation 

Foundation, then in such event BSL shall immediately remove said signage when requested to do 

so in writing by the City. 

 

  8. Cleaning:  BSL shall take good care of the Pool facility and premises at 

all times; shall keep the Pool facility clean and free from debris; promptly remove all garbage 

and trash from the Pool facility on a daily basis and clean the dressing rooms and restrooms 

following swim meets and special events. 

 

SECTION VII 

REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT OF POOL EQUIPMENT 

 

 During the term of this Agreement or any renewal thereof, BSL and the City shall be 

responsible for the repair and replacement of pool equipment and facilities over and above 

normal routine maintenance expenses as follows: 

 

 A. REPAIR OF EQUIPMENT:   

 

  1. Summer Operation Period:  During the Summer Operation Period, the 

City shall be responsible for arranging and overseeing the repair of equipment comprising the 

Pool facility. 

 

   (a) City: The City shall pay fifty percent (50%) of the cost of 

repairing the Pool equipment during the Summer Operation Period. 

 

   (b) BSL: BSL shall pay the remaining fifty percent (50%) of the cost 

of repairing the Pool equipment during the Summer Operation Period. 

 

  2. Extended Operation Period:  During the Extended Operation Period, the 

City shall be responsible for arranging and overseeing the repair of equipment comprising the 

Pool facility. 

 

   (a) City: The City shall pay fifty percent (50%) of the cost of 

repairing the Pool equipment during the Extended Operation Period. 

 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 11 

 

   (b) BSL: BSL shall pay the remaining fifty percent (50%) of the cost 

of repairing the Pool equipment during the Extended Operation Period. 

 

 B. EXPENDITURES FOR REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT OF EQUIPMENT:  City and BSL 

shall strictly comply with the requirements of the Alabama Competitive Bid Law (Title 41-16-

50, et seq., Code of Alabama, 1975) and Public Works Law (Title 39-1-1, et seq., Code of 

Alabama, 1975) when expenditures are made for the repair and/or replacement of equipment of 

the Pool. 

 

 C. REPAIRS BY CITY AND BOARD:  The City, Board and BSL all acknowledge and 

agree that the swimming pool is old and could require major repairs during the term of this 

Agreement.  Anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, neither the 

City or the Board shall be required to make major repairs to the swimming pool.  The question of 

what constitutes a major repair shall be decided by the City and Board in their sole and absolute 

discretion. 

 

SECTION VIII 

CIVIL RIGHTS ASSURANCE 

 

 BSL shall be and is prohibited from discriminating based on race, color, religion, sex, age 

or national origin.  As a condition to the execution and delivery of this Agreement by the City 

and Board, BSL agrees that it will comply with all federal laws relating to nondiscrimination.  

These laws include but are not limited to: 

 

 A. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d-1) (P.L. 88-352), which 

prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin. 

 

 B. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), which 

prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicap. 

 

 C. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101, et seq.), 

which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; and applicable regulatory requirements to the 

end that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, 

handicap or age, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of or be otherwise 

subjected to discrimination under any program or activity conducted by BSL and/or City. 

 

 D. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. §1681, 

1683, 1685, 1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex. 

 

 E. Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §2000e-2(a)), which prohibits 

unlawful employment practices. 

 

 F. Any other nondiscrimination provisions of the specific statutes cited above. 

 

 G. The requirements for any and all other nondiscrimination statutes, which apply to 

the conduct of governmental functions and the use of municipal facilities. 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 12 

 

 

SECTION IX 

PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE 

 

 BSL shall, during the entire term of this Agreement or any renewal thereof, at BSL’s own 

expense, keep in force and effect by advanced payment of premiums, public liability insurance in 

an amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for injury to or death of one 

person or as a result of one occurrence and not less than Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000.00) 

for injury to or death of more than one person as a result of one occurrence insuring BSL, the 

City of Vestavia Hills and the City’s Mayor, City Manager, City Clerk, members of the City 

Council, servants, agents, employees and other representatives (as additional insureds) and the 

Board and its members and employees (as additional insureds) against any liability that may 

accrue against them or either of them on account of any occurrences on or about the Pool 

premises during the Summer Operation Period when BSL is using the Pool premises and also 

during the Extended Operation Period when BSL is managing and using the Pool premises or in 

consequence of BSL’s occupancy thereof and resulting in personal injury or death.  BSL shall, 

on request, furnish to City certificates of all insurance required under this paragraph.  Failure of 

BSL to carry said insurance coverage shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. 

 

SECTION X 

INDEMNITY 

 

 BSL does hereby indemnify and agree to hold harmless the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, its Mayor, City Manager, City Clerk, members of the City Council, servants, agents, 

employees and other representatives and the Board and its members and employees and/or any 

one or more of any thereof against any claim, demand, loss, cost, damage, suits, actions, causes 

of action, payments, claims or other expenses resulting in or caused by personal injuries, death or 

property loss or damage from any occurrence or incident arising out of or in consequence of: 

 

 A. The use and occupancy of the Pool premises by BSL during the Summer 

Operation Period; and 

 

 B. The use of and operation of the Pool by BSL during the Extended Operation 

Period; and 

 

 C. Any damage to or loss of personal inventory or equipment owned by the City or 

Board while BSL is conducting programs, using the Pool facility and operating the Pool facility; 

provided, however, usual wear and tear to the Pool and equipment excepted. 

 

 This indemnification provision shall survive the expiration and termination of this 

Agreement.  Anything contained herein to the contrary notwithstanding, BSL does not indemnify 

the City or Board or any of their representatives for anything attributable to the negligent willful 

or wrongful act of the City or its duly authorized agents or representatives. 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 13 

 

SECTION XI 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 

 It is understood that BSL is an independent contractor and is responsible for its own 

actions when performing services under this Agreement and is not an agent or employee of the 

City.  BSL shall not receive any benefits provided to regular City employees.  The City will not 

pay Social Security or withholding taxes for employees of BSL.  BSL assumes all liability and 

responsibility for reporting its income to the proper authorities. 

 

SECTION XII 

ALTERATIONS AND FIXTURES 

 

 BSL shall not make or cause to be made any alterations, additions or improvements or 

install or cause to be installed any trade fixture, exterior signs, floor covering, interior or exterior 

lighting, plumbing fixtures, shades or awnings or make any changes to the Pool and/or the Wald 

Park premises without first obtaining the City’s written approval and consent.  BSL shall present 

to the City plans and specifications for such work at the time approval is sought. 

 

 In addition, BSL will not paint or decorate any part of the exterior of the premises of the 

Pool and/or Wald Park premises, or any part of the interior without first obtaining the City’s 

written approval. 

 

SECTION XIII 

IMMIGRATION LAW 

 

 Act 2012-491 of the Alabama Legislature requires that all state, county and municipal 

contracts and agreements contain the following language: 

 

 "By signing this contract, the contracting parties affirm, for 

the duration of the agreement, that they will not violate federal 

immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for employment or 

continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of 

Alabama.  Furthermore, a contracting party found to be in violation 

of this provision shall be deemed in breach of the agreement and 

shall be responsible for all damages resulting therefrom." 

 

SECTION XIV 

COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE 41-16-5, 

CODE OF ALABAMA, 1975, BOYCOTT LIMITATIONS 

 

 Act 2016-312 of the Alabama Legislature prohibits a governmental entity from entering 

into certain public contracts with a business entity unless the contract includes a representation 

that the business is not currently engaged in, and an agreement that the business will not engage 

in, the boycott of a person or an entity based upon the person or business doing business with a 

jurisdiction with which the state can enjoy open trade.  The prohibition does not apply if a 

business offers to provide goods or services for at least 20 percent less than the lowest certifying 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 14 

 

business entity or to a contract with a value less than $15,000.00.  BSL represents and warrants 

that it is not currently engaged in, and will not engage in, the boycott of a person or an entity 

based in or doing business with a jurisdiction with which this state can enjoy open trade. 

 

SECTION XV 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 A. NOTICES:  Any and all notices required or permitted to be given hereunder shall 

be deemed received five (5) days after the same are deposited in the U.S. Mail sent postage 

prepaid via certified mail, return receipted requested.   

 

 All notices to the City shall be sent to: 

 

  City Manager 

  City of Vestavia Hills 

  1032 Montgomery Highway 

  Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 

 

 With a copy to: 

 

  Superintendent of Parks and Recreation 

  1973 Merryvale Road 

  Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 

 

 All notices to BSL shall be sent to: 

 

  President 

  Birmingham Swim League 

  1025 Montgomery Highway, Suite 106 

  Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 

 

 Either party may change the address at which it is to be given notice by giving notice of 

such change of address in the manner provided for giving notices in this paragraph. 

 

 B. AMBIGUITY:  The parties acknowledge that they have entered into this Agreement 

after arms’ length negotiations wherein all parties have had an opportunity to negotiate all terms 

and any ambiguity will not be strictly construed against the drafter of the Agreement. 

 

 C. INTERPRETATION:  The Mayor and City Manager shall administer this 

Agreement on behalf of the City.  As used herein, the word “City” shall refer to the City 

Manager unless otherwise noted or unless the context renders such construction illogical. 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 15 

 

 D. ATTORNEY’S FEES:  In the event that any time during the term of this Agreement 

either the City, Board or BSL shall institute any action or proceeding against the other relating to 

the interpretation or enforcement of any of the provisions of this Agreement, or any default 

hereunder, then the unsuccessful party in such action or proceeding agrees to reimburse the 

prevailing party for its reasonable expenses with regard to such action, including attorney’s fees. 

 

 E. NON WAIVER:   

 

  (1) City and Board:  The failure of the City or Board to insist, in any one or 

more instances, upon a strict performance of any of the covenants of this Agreement, or to 

exercise any option therein contained, shall not be construed as a waiver, or a relinquishment for 

the future of such covenant or option, but the same shall continue and remain in full force and 

effect. 

 

  (2) BSL:  The failure of BSL to insist, in any one or more instances, upon a 

strict performance of any of the covenants of this Agreement, or to exercise any option therein 

contained, shall not be construed as a waiver, or a relinquishment for the future of such covenant 

or option, but the same shall continue and remain in full force and effect. 

 

 F. WAIVER OF MODIFICATION:  Any waiver, alteration or modification of any of the 

provisions of this Agreement or cancellation or replacement of this Agreement shall not be valid 

unless in writing and signed by the parties hereto.  This Agreement may be amended at any time 

by written agreement of the parties signatory hereto.   

 

 G. ASSIGNMENT:  BSL shall not assign or transfer this Agreement without the City’s 

prior written approval.  Any attempt to assign this Agreement without such approval shall be 

void. 

 

 H. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This written Agreement contains the entire understanding 

and agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all 

other negotiations, understandings and representations (if any) made by and between such 

parties. 

 

 I. BINDING EFFECT:  All of the terms and provisions of this Agreement, whether so 

expressed or not, shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by the 

parties and their respective administrators, executors, legal representatives, heirs, successors and 

permitted assigns. 

 

 J. SEVERABILITY:  If any part or provision of this Agreement or any other 

agreement entered pursuant hereto is contrary to, prohibited by or deemed invalid under 

applicable law or regulation, such provision shall be inapplicable and deemed omitted to the 

extent so contrary, prohibited or invalid, but the remainder hereof shall not be invalidated 

thereby and shall be given full force and effect so far as possible. 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 16 

 

 

 K. GOVERNING LAW:  This Agreement and all transactions contemplated by this 

Agreement shall be governed by, and constructed and enforced in accordance with, the laws of 

the State of Alabama without regard to principles of conflicts of law.  The jurisdiction and venue 

for the resolution of any dispute shall be in Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 

 L. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  BSL additionally covenants to use and occupy said 

premises, including the bathhouse and restrooms, in a careful, clean, safe and proper manner, 

keeping said premises and appurtenances, if any, in a clean and safe condition.  SL shall 

promptly execute and comply with all laws, statutes, ordinances, orders, regulations and 

requirements of the federal, state, county and city governments and of any and all their 

departments and bureaus applicable to the premises. 

 

 M. ARTICLE AND SECTION HEADINGS:  The article and section headings and 

captions contained herein are included for convenience only, and shall not be considered a part 

hereof or affect in any manner the construction or interpretation hereof. 

 

 N. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS:  The Agreement may be executed in several 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 

same instrument. 

 

 O. NOT A LEASE:  This Agreement is for operations and maintenance of the facilities 

defined herein.  No part, parcel, building, structure, equipment or space is leased to BSL.  BSL is 

not a lessee.  BSL has the right to operate the Pool and such right shall continue so long as the 

concession operation complies with the undertakings, provisions, agreements, stipulations and 

conditions of this Agreement.  This Agreement is not a Lease. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Pool Facility Use and 

Operation Agreement to be executed on the day and year above. 

 

      CITY: 

      CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

      A Municipal Corporation 

 

 

      By ____________________________________ 

       Ashley C. Curry 

       Its Mayor 

 

      By ____________________________________ 

       Jeffrey D. Downes 

       Its City Manager 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 17 

 

 

ATTESTED  

 

 

By________________________________ 

 

 

      BOARD: 

      VESTAVIA HILLS PARKS 

      AND RECREATION BOARD 

                   

 

      By ____________________________________ 

       David Myers 

       Its President 

 

ATTESTED: 

                  

 

By________________________________ 

                  

      BSL: 

      BIRMINGHAM SWIM LEAGUE 

                   

 

      By ____________________________________ 
       Its Duly Authorized Officer and Representative 

 

ATTESTED: 

                  

 

By________________________________ 

                  

 

 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 18 

 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, 

hereby certify that Ashley C. Curry, whose name as Mayor of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, a municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing Pool Facility Use and Operation 

Agreement, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed 

of the contents of the document, he, as such officer and with full authority, executed the same 

voluntarily for and as the act of said City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _________ day of May, 2017. 

 

 

     _____________________________________________ 

      Notary Public 

 

My Commission Expires:  

___________________ 

SEAL 

 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, 

hereby certify that Jeffrey D. Downes, whose name as City Manager of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, a municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing Pool Facility Use and 

Operation Agreement, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, 

being informed of the contents of the document, he, as such officer and with full authority, 

executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _________ day of May, 2017. 

 

 

     _____________________________________________ 

      Notary Public 

My Commission Expires:  

___________________ 

SEAL 



Resolution Number 4956 

Exhibit A 

 

Page 19 

 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, 

hereby certify that David Myers, whose name as President of the Vestavia Hills Parks and 

Recreation Board, is signed to the foregoing Pool Facility Use and Operation Agreement, and 

who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents 

of the document, he, as such officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for 

and as the act of said Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Board. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _________ day of May, 2017. 

 

 

     _____________________________________________ 

      Notary Public 

My Commission Expires:  

___________________ 

SEAL 

 

 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COUNTY 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 

 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, 

hereby certify that ___________________, whose name as _______________________ of the 

Birmingham Swim League, an Alabama non-profit corporation, is signed to the foregoing Pool 

Facility Use and Operation Agreement, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on 

this day that, being informed of the contents of the document, he, as such officer and with full 

authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said Birmingham Swim 

League. 

 

 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _________ day of May, 2017. 

 

 

     _____________________________________________ 

      Notary Public 

My Commission Expires:  

___________________ 

SEAL 

 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4954 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO REPLACE 
A COMPRESSOR AND COIL IN THE HVAC SYSTEM AT THE 
VESTAVIA HILLS LIBRARY IN THE FOREST 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to replace a coil and compressor in the HVAC 

system at a cost not to exceed $11,000 as described in an interoffice memorandum from 

the Public Services Director, a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A” and is attached to 

and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4954 as if written fully therein; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4954 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12th day of June, 2017. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



 
 

Vestavia Hills Public Services 
1032 Montgomery Highway 

Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMO 
 

Date:     June 5, 2017 
 
TO:    Jeff Downes 
    City Manager 
 
From:    Brian Davis 
    Public Service Director 
 
RE:    Library HVAC 
 
The HVAC at the library needs a new compressor and coil at a cost of $10,936.  This was 
a  pre‐existing  issue with  the  unit  prior  to  the  contract with H&M Mechanical. H&M 
Mechanical has  tried  to “band‐aid”  the  issue  to keep  the unit  functioning, however  it 
has become extremely time consuming and cost prohibitive. 
 
I would  like to request unanimous consent at the next council meeting for the amount 
of $10,936 for the cost of the replacement parts.  H&M Mechanical will cover the cost of 
labor within the maintenance contract.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.   
 
CC:    Taneisha Tucker 
    Rebecca Leavings 
    Bobby McDaniel 
 

EXHIBIT A



Ordinance Number 2711 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2711 
 

 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 

 WHEREAS, on the 27
th

 day of February, 2017, a petition was presented to the 

City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2419 Dolly Ridge Road 

Jason and Stefanie Robinson, Owner(s) 

 

More particularly described as follows: 

 

Commence at the SE corner of the NE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 32, 

Township 18 South, Range 2 west, thence in a Northerly direction along 

the East line of said 1/4-1/4 466.79 feet to a point on the South line of a 

County Road; thence 72 degrees 44’ 00” to the left along the southerly 

right-of-way line of said County Road 104.54 feet to the point of 

beginning; thence continue along the last described course 104.54 feet; 

thence 107 degrees 16’ 00” to the left in a southerly direction 307.21 feet; 

thence 85 degrees 39’ 45” left in an Easterly direction 100.0 feet; thence 

93 degrees 20’ 15” to the left in a Northerly direction 282.00 feet to the 

point of beginning. 

 

 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2711 

Page 2 

 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 26
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2711 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 26
th

 day of June, 2017, as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2711 

Page 3 

 

 



Untitled Page Page 1 of 1

PARCEL #: 28 00 32 3 004 002.000

OWNER: BABB JOHN N JR & WYVONNE

ADDRESS: 2419 DOLLY RIDGE RD VESTAVIA AL 35243-

4609

LOCATION: 2419 DOLLY RIDGE RD BHAM AL 35243

[ 111-D+ ] Baths: 3.0 H/C Sqft: 1,745

18-034.0 Bed Rooms: 3 Land Sch: Ll

Land: 73,400 Imp: 86,900 Total: 160,300

Acres: 0.000 Sales Info: $0

<< Prev Next >> [1/0 Records ] Processing...

SUMMARY LAND

Tax Year:|2016 V

BUILDINGS SALES PHOTOGRAPHS MAPS

SUMMARY

ASSESSMENT

PROPERTY

CLASS:

EXEMPT CODE:

MUN CODE:

SCHOOL DIST:

OVR ASD

VALUE:

CLASS USE:

FOREST ACRES:

PREV YEAR

VALUE:

3

5-5 DISABILITY CODE:

01 COUNTY HS YEAR:

EXM OVERRIDE

AMT:

OVER 65 CODE:

.00

$0.00 TOTAL MILLAGE: 50.1

0 TAX SALE:

$160,300.00BOE VALUE:

VALUE

LAND VALUE 10%

LAND VALUE 20%

CURRENT USE VALUE

CLASS 2

CLASS 3

BLDG 001

[DEACTIVATED]

111

$73,430

$86,900

TOTAL MARKET VALUE [APPR. VALUE: $160,300]: $160,330

Assesment Override:

MARKET VALUE:

CU VALUE:

PENALTY:

ASSESSED VALUE:

TAX INFO

CLASS MUNCODE ASSD. VALUE TAX EXEMPTION TAX EXEMPTION TOTAL TAX

STATE 3 1 $16,040 $104.26 $16,040 $104.26 $0.00

COUNTY 3 1 $16,040 $216.54 $16,040 $216.54 $0.00

SCHOOL 3 1 $16,040 $131.53 $16,040 $131.53 $0.00

DIST SCHOOL 3 1 $16,040 $0.00 $16,040 $0.00 $0.00

CITY 3 1 $16,040 $0.00 $16,040 $0.00 $0.00

FOREST 3 1 $0 $0.00 $0 $0.00 $0.00

SPC SCHOOL1 3 1 $16,040 $81.80 $16,040 $81.80 $0.00

SPC SCHOOL2 3 1 $16,040 $269.47 $16,040 $269.47 $0.00

ASSD. VALUE: $16,040.00

DEEDS

INSTRUMENT NUMBER

2016086011

6825-488

DATE

8/19/2016

01/26/1963

$803.60

PAYMENT INFO

GRAND TOTAL: $0.00

FULLY PAID

PAY DATE TAX YEAR PAID BY AMOUNT

2016 $0.00

2015 $0.00

2014 $0.00

2013 $0.00

2012 $0.00

20071229 2007 ** * $499.23

20041216 2004 *** $560.28

20031231 2003 *** $477.00

http://eringcapture.jccal.org/caportal/CA_PropertyTaxParcelInfo.aspx?ParcelNo=28 00 3... 12/13/2016









 













Ordinance Number 2712 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2712 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 

ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 

AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 

DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 

COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district):  

2419 Dolly Ridge Road 

Jason and Stefanie Robinson, Owner(s) 

 

More particularly described as follows: 

 

Commence at the SE corner of the NE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 32, 

Township 18 South, Range 2 west, thence in a Northerly direction along 

the East line of said 1/4-1/4 466.79 feet to a point on the South line of a 

County Road; thence 72 degrees 44’ 00” to the left along the southerly 

right-of-way line of said County Road 104.54 feet to the point of 

beginning; thence continue along the last described course 104.54 feet; 

thence 107 degrees 16’ 00” to the left in a southerly direction 307.21 feet; 

thence 85 degrees 39’ 45” left in an Easterly direction 100.0 feet; thence 

93 degrees 20’ 15” to the left in a Northerly direction 282.00 feet to the 

point of beginning. 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 26
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2712 

Page 2 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2712 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 26
th

 day of June, 2017 as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 

Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 

______________, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2712 

Page 3 

 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     APRIL 13, 2017 
 

• CASE:  P-0417-14 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-
2 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2419 Dolly Ridge Rd. 

 
•    APPLICANT/OWNER: Jason Robinson 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 

2/27/17 with the passage of Ordinance 2694. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning as part of the annexation process. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Burrell made a motion to recommend rezoning approval of 2419 Dolly Ridge 
Rd. from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2. Second was by Mr. Brooks. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes           
Mr. Gilchrist – yes    Mr. Brooks – yes 
Mrs. Cobb – yes    Mr. Wolfe – yes    
Motion carried 



Ordinance Number 2713 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2713 
 

 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 

 WHEREAS, on the 13
th

 day of March, 2017, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2611 April Drive 

Lot 9, Altadena Acres 

Charles and Stephanie Langner, Owner(s) 

 

 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 26
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2713 

Page 2 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2713 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 26
th

 day of June, 2017, as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2713 

Page 3 

 

 



2611 April Drive; Langner



2611 April Drive; Langner







 

2611 April Drive; Langner



 

 

2611 April Drive; Langner



2611 April Drive; Langner



2611 April Drive; Langner



2611 April Drive; Langner



2611 April Drive; Langner



2611 April Drive; Langner



2611 April Drive; Langner



Ordinance Number 2714 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2714 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 

ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 

AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 

DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 

COUNTY E-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS E-2 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-1 (low 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills E-2 (low density residential district):  

2611 April Drive 

Lot 9, Altadena Acres 

Charles and Stephanie Langner, Owner(s) 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 26
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2714 

Page 2 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2714 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 26
th

 day of June, 2017 as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 

Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 

______________, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2714 

Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     APRIL 13, 2017 
 

• CASE:  P-0417-16 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning from Jefferson County Jefferson County E-1 to 
Vestavia Hills E-2 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2611 April Dr. 

 
•    APPLICANT/OWNER: Charles Hunter & Stephanie Langer 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 

3/13/17 with the passage of Ordinance 2699. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning as part of the annexation process. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval of 2611 April Dr. 
from Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2. Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried 
on a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes           
Mr. Gilchrist – yes    Mr. Brooks – yes 
Mrs. Cobb – yes    Mr. Wolfe – yes    
Motion carried  



Ordinance Number 2715 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2715 
 

 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 

 WHEREAS, on the 13
th

 day of March, 2017, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3139 Renfro Road 

Lot 9, Block 2, South Vestavia Estates 

Joey and Pamela Snow, Owner(s) 

 

 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 26
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2715 

Page 2 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2715 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 26
th

 day of June, 2017, as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2715 

Page 3 

 

 











 

 

 

 











Ordinance Number 2716 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2716 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 

ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 

AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 

DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 

COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district):  

3139 Renfro Road 

Lot 9, Block 2, South Vestavia Estates 

Joey and Pamela Snow, Owner(s) 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 26
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2716 

Page 2 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2716 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 26
th

 day of June, 2017 as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 

Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 

______________, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2716 

Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     APRIL 13, 2017 
 

• CASE:  P-0417-17 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning from Jefferson County Jefferson County R-1 to 
Vestavia Hills R-2 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3139 Renfro Rd. 

 
•    APPLICANT/OWNER: Joey L. & Pamela J. Snow 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 

3/13/17 with the passage of Ordinance 2697. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning as part of the annexation process. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval of 3139 Renfro Rd. 
from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2. Second was by Mr. Brooks. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes           
Mr. Gilchrist – yes    Mr. Brooks – yes 
Mrs. Cobb – yes    Mr. Wolfe – yes    
Motion carried. 



Ordinance Number 2717 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2717 
 

 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 

 WHEREAS, on the 13
th

 day of March, 2017, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2696 Atladena Road 

Lot 1A, Resurvey of Lot 1, Altadena Park 

Curtis and Lisa Martin, Owner(s) 

 

 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 26
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2717 

Page 2 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2717 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 26
th

 day of June, 2017, as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2717 

Page 3 

 

 











 

 

 

 

 

 

 













Ordinance Number 2718 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2718 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 

ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 

AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 

DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 

COUNTY E-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS E-2 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-1 (low 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills E-2 (low density residential district):  

2696 Atladena Road 

Lot 1A, Resurvey of Lot 1, Altadena Park 

Curtis and Lisa Martin, Owner(s) 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 26
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2718 

Page 2 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2718 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 26
th

 day of June, 2017 as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 

Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 

______________, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2718 

Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     APRIL 13, 2017 
 

• CASE:  P-0417-18 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning from Jefferson County Jefferson County E-1 to 
Vestavia Hills E-2 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2696 Altadena Rd. 

 
•    APPLICANT/OWNER: Curtis T. & Lisa V. Martin 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 

3/13/17 with the passage of Ordinance 2698. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning as part of the annexation process. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mrs. Cobb made a motion to recommend rezoning approval of 2696 Altadena Rd. 
from Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2. Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried 
on a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes           
Mr. Gilchrist – yes    Mr. Brooks – yes 
Mrs. Cobb – yes    Mr. Wolfe – yes    
Motion carried 



Ordinance Number 2719 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2719 
 

 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 

 WHEREAS, on the 13
th

 day of March, 2017, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2470 Dolly Ridge Trail 

Lot 5, Block 2, Dolly Ridge Estates, 1st Add 

Matthew and Jessica Jones, Owner(s) 

 

 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof, together with a 

duly certified copy of the petition, with the Probate Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 26
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2719 

Page 2 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2719 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 26
th

 day of June, 2017, as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 

Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 

______ day of ______________, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2719 

Page 3 

 

 











 

 

 

 















Ordinance Number 2720 

Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2720 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 

ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 

AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 

DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 

COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-1 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district):  

2470 Dolly Ridge Trail 

Lot 5, Block 2, Dolly Ridge Estates, 1st Add 

Matthew and Jessica Jones, Owner(s) 

 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 26
th

 day of June, 2017. 

 

 

 

      Ashley C. Curry 

      Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2720 

Page 2 

 

CERTIFICATION: 
 

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2720 is a true and 

correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills on the 26
th

 day of June, 2017 as same appears in the official records of 

said City. 

 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 

Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 

______________, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

      Rebecca Leavings 

      City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2720 

Page 3 

 

 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     APRIL 13, 2017 
 

• CASE:  P-0417-19 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning from Jefferson County Jefferson County E-2 to 
Vestavia Hills R-1 

 
•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2470 Dolly Ridge Trl. 

 
•    APPLICANT/OWNER: Matthew & Jessica Jones 

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 

3/13/17 with the passage of Ordinance 2700. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning as part of the annexation process. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval of 2470 Dolly 
Ridge Trl. from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills R-1. Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion 
was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes           
Mr. Gilchrist – yes    Mr. Brooks – yes 
Mrs. Cobb – yes    Mr. Wolfe – yes    
Motion carried 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4955 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
PURCHASE HANDGUNS FOR THE VESTAVIA HILLS POLICE 
DEPARTMENT 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase handguns and equipment as detailed 

in an interoffice memorandum from the Police Chief to the City Manager, a copy of 

which is marked as “Exhibit A” and is attached and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 4955 as though written fully therein; and 

2. Said purchase shall be funded from the Police Department Confiscations Account; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4955 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12th day of June, 2017. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Exhibit A



Exhibit A



Exhibit A


	2017_0612CC_A
	2017_0515CC_work session
	2017_0522CC_M
	Resolution 4950
	Resolution 4951
	Resolution 4951
	Resolution 4951 Legal Opinion on Contract with TCU
	Resolution 4951 Request for Proposals for Capital Projects Management Services
	Resolution 4951 Exhibit A
	Resolution 4951 Exhibit B Vestavia Program Management FINAL - Clean Version 20170503 clauses added 20170505
	Resolution 4951 Exhibit C

	Ordinance 2721
	Ordinance 2722
	Resolution 4952
	Resolution 4953
	Resolution 4956
	Resolution 4954
	Ordinance 2711
	Ordinance 2712
	P-0417-14.pdf
	Date:     APRIL 13, 2017


	Ordinance 2713
	2611 April Drive.pdf
	2611 April Drive

	2470 Dolly Ridge Trl

	3139 Renfro Road

	3308 MIsty Lane

	2696 Altadena Road

	2419 Dolly Ridge Road



	Ordinance 2714
	P-0417-16.pdf
	Date:     APRIL 13, 2017


	Ordinance 2715
	Ordinance 2716
	P-0417-17.pdf
	Date:     APRIL 13, 2017


	Ordinance 2717
	Ordinance 2718
	P-0417-18.pdf
	Date:     APRIL 13, 2017


	Ordinance 2719
	Ordinance 2720
	P-0417-19.pdf
	Date:     APRIL 13, 2017


	Resolution 4955



